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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009.

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.

For the transition period from                 to

Commission file number:  0-21815

FIRST MARINER BANCORP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 52-1834860
(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
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1501 South Clinton Street, Baltimore,
MD 21224 410-342-2600

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) (Telephone Number)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such report, and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes x  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).  Yes o No o (Not Applicable)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company.  See definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)  Yes o  No x

The number of shares of common stock outstanding as of May 8, 2009 is 6,452,631 shares.
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PART I � FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1 � Financial Statements

First Mariner Bancorp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008

(unaudited)
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 100,905 $ 21,045
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits 7,068 46,294
Trading securities, at fair value 12,378 12,566
Securities available for sale, at fair value 40,272 39,666
Loans held for sale 85,298 60,203
Loans receivable 980,470 978,696
Allowance for loan losses (15,515) (16,777)
Loans, net 964,955 961,919
Real estate acquired through foreclosure 22,403 18,994
Restricted stock investments 7,619 7,066
Premises and equipment, net 48,750 49,964
Accrued interest receivable 6,400 6,335
Income taxes recoverable 4,304 1,812
Deferred income taxes 24,554 26,057
Bank-owned life insurance 35,252 36,436
Prepaid expenses and other assets 19,533 19,140

Total assets $ 1,379,691 $ 1,307,497

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing $ 120,847 $ 114,751
Interest-bearing 900,960 835,482
Total deposits 1,021,807 950,233
Short-term borrowings 50,009 43,128
Long-term borrowings, at fair value 63,496 64,073
Long-term borrowings 111,502 113,795
Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures 73,724 73,724
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ($1,374 and $1,199 at fair value, respectively) 15,232 16,529
Total liabilities 1,335,770 1,261,482

Stockholders� equity:
Common stock, $.05 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 6,452,631shares issued and
outstanding at both March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 323 323
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Additional paid-in capital 56,753 56,741
Retained deficit (7,438) (5,485)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,717) (5,564)
Total stockholders� equity 43,921 46,015

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 1,379,691 $ 1,307,497

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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First Mariner Bancorp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(dollars in thousands except per share data)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008
(unaudited)

Interest income:
Loans $ 19,639 $ 20,001
Investments and other earning assets 800 1,723
Total interest income 20,439 21,724
Interest expense:
Deposits 6,418 6,156
Short-term borrowings 209 203
Long-term borrowings 2,734 3,395
Total interest expense 9,361 9,754
Net interest income 11,078 11,970
Provision for loan losses 4,396 3,823
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 6,682 8,147
Noninterest income:
Total other-than-temporary impairment charges (2,058) �
Less: Portion included in other comprehensive income (pre-tax) 342 �
Net other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities available for sale (1,716) �
Origination fees and gain on sale of mortgage loans 3,614 654
Other mortgage-banking revenue 1,296 977
ATM fees 714 777
Service fees on deposits 1,332 1,535
Gain (loss) on financial instruments carried at fair value 768 (1,020)
Loss on sale of premises and equipment � (33)
Commissions on sales of nondeposit investment products 136 240
Income from bank-owned life insurance 336 371
Commissions on sales of other insurance products 734 620
Other 1,058 507
Total noninterest income 8,272 4,628
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 9,207 9,204
Occupancy 2,947 2,631
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 979 983
Professional services 858 421
Advertising 258 430
Data processing 513 548
ATM servicing expenses 228 244
Write-downs, losses, and costs of real estate acquired through foreclosure 2,114 636
Secondary marketing valuation � 180
Service and maintenance 726 673
Other 2,665 2,531
Total noninterest expense 20,495 18,481
Net loss before income taxes (5,541) (5,706)
Income tax benefit (2,440) (2,428)
Net loss $ (3,101) $ (3,278)
Net loss per common share:
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Basic $ (0.48) $ (0.52)
Diluted $ (0.48) $ (0.52)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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First Mariner Bancorp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

(unaudited)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (3,101) $ (3,278)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash from operating activities:
Stock-based compensation 12 6
Depreciation and amortization 1,381 1,374
Amortization of unearned loan fees and costs, net 143 (107)
Amortization of premiums and discounts on loans, net (385) (285)
Amortization of premiums and discounts on mortgage-backed securities, net 2 3
(Gain) loss on financial instruments carried at fair value (768) 1,020
Origination fees and gain on sale of mortgage loans (3,614) (654)
Other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities available for sale 1,716 �
Increase in accrued interest receivable (65) (3)
Provision for loan losses 4,396 3,823
Write-downs and losses on sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 1,938 407
Secondary marketing valuation � 180
Loss on sale of premises and equipment � 33
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance (336) (371)
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale (502,593) (373,729)
Proceeds from mortgage loans held for sale 481,112 360,721
Net decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities (1,297) (1,549)
Net increase in prepaids and other assets (2,724) (2,769)
Net cash used in operating activities (24,183) (15,178)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loan principal disbursements, net of repayments (14,419) (8,036)
Purchases of premises and equipment (179) (468)
Proceeds from disposals of premises and equipment 12 7
(Purchases) redemptions of restricted stock investments (553) 43
Maturities/calls/repayments of trading securities 379 1,047
Activity in securities available for sale:
Maturities/calls/repayments of securities available for sale 1,004 459
Purchase of securities available for sale (999) �
Redemptions of bank-owned life insurance 1,528 �
Proceeds from sales of real estate acquired through foreclosure 1,882 3,325
Net cash used in investing activities (11,345) (3,623)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 71,574 37,231
Net increase in other borrowed funds 4,588 3,322
Proceeds from stock issuance � 106
Net cash provided by financing activities 76,162 40,659
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 40,634 21,858
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 67,339 91,321
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 107,973 $ 113,179
Supplemental information:
Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds $ 9,134 $ 9,343
Income taxes paid $ � $ �
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Real estate acquired in satisfaction of loans $ 7,229 $ 4,632
Transfer of loans held for sale to loan portfolio $ � $ 613

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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First Mariner Bancorp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Information as of and for three months

ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 is unaudited)

(1) Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis Of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for First Mariner Bancorp have been prepared in accordance with the instructions for
Form 10-Q and, therefore, do not include all information and notes necessary for a full presentation of financial condition, results of operations,
and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (�U.S.�).  The consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included in First Mariner Bancorp�s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008.  When used in these notes, the terms �the Company�,  �we�,  �us�,  and �our� refer to First Mariner Bancorp and,
unless the context requires otherwise, its consolidated subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company�s subsidiaries,First Mariner Bank (the �Bank�), Mariner Finance, LLC
(�Mariner Finance�), and FM Appraisals, LLC (�FM Appraisals�). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2009 and for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 are unaudited but include
all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, which we consider necessary for a fair presentation of financial position and
results of operations for those periods. The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the
results that will be achieved for the entire year or any future interim period.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses (the �allowance�), loan repurchases and related valuations, real estate acquired through foreclosure, impairment of
securities available for sale, and deferred taxes. In connection with these determinations, management evaluates historical trends and ratios and,
where appropriate, obtains independent appraisals for significant properties and prepares fair value analyses. Actual results could differ
significantly from those estimates.

Securities
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We designate securities into one of three categories at the time of purchase. Debt securities that we have the intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as held to maturity and recorded at amortized cost. Debt and equity securities are classified as trading if bought and held
principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term. Trading securities are reported at estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses included in earnings. Debt securities not classified as held to maturity and debt and equity securities not classified as trading securities are
considered available for sale and are reported at estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate component of
stockholders� equity, net of tax effects, in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Securities held to maturity and available for sale are evaluated periodically to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary.
The term �other-than-temporary� is not intended to indicate a permanent decline in value. Rather, it means that the prospects for near term
recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying
value of the security.

The initial indication of other-than-temporary impairment for both debt and equity securities is a decline in the market value below the amount
recorded for an investment. In determining whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, we consider whether it is more likely than not that
we will be required to sell the security before full recovery of the value. For marketable equity securities, we also consider the issuer�s financial
condition, capital strength, and near-term prospects. For debt securities and for perpetual preferred securities that are treated as debt securities
for the purpose of other-than-temporary analysis, we also consider the cause of the price decline (general level of interest rates and industry- and
issuer-specific factors), the issuer�s financial condition, near-term prospects and current ability to make future payments in a timely

6
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manner, the issuer�s ability to service debt, and any change in agencies� ratings at evaluation date from acquisition date and any likely imminent
action. Once a decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the security is segmented into credit and noncredit-related
components.  Any impairment adjustment due to identified credit-related components is recorded as an adjustment to current period earnings,
while noncredit-related fair value adjustments will be recorded through other comprehensive income.

Gains or losses on the sales of securities are calculated using a specific-identification basis and are determined on a trade-date basis. Premiums
and discounts on securities are amortized over the term of the security using methods that approximate the interest method.  Gains and losses on
trading securities are recognized regularly in income as the fair value of those securities changes.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

We account for derivates in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(�SFAS�) No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended.  We designate a derivative as held for trading, an
economic hedge not designated as a SFAS 133 hedge, or a qualifying SFAS 133 hedge when we enter into the derivative contract. The
designation may change based upon management�s reassessment or changing circumstances. Derivatives utilized by the Company include swaps,
interest rate lock commitments, and forward settlement contracts. A swap agreement is a contract between two parties to exchange cash flows
based on specified underlying notional amounts, assets and/or indices. Interest rate lock commitments occur when we originate mortgage loans
with interest rates determined prior to funding.  Forward settlement contracts are agreements to buy or sell a quantity of a financial instrument,
index, currency or commodity at a predetermined future date, and rate or price.

We designate at inception whether a derivative contract is considered hedging or non-hedging for SFAS 133 accounting purposes. All of our
derivatives are non-exchange traded contracts, and as such, their fair value is based on dealer quotes, pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques for which the determination of fair value may require significant management judgment or estimation.

For SFAS 133 hedges, we formally document at inception all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as risk
management objectives and strategies for undertaking various accounting hedges. We utilize derivatives to manage interest rate sensitivity in
certain cases.

Cash flow hedges are used to minimize the variability in cash flows of assets or liabilities, or forecasted transactions caused by interest rate or
foreign exchange fluctuation.  We use dollar offset or regression analysis at the hedge�s inception and for each reporting period thereafter to
assess whether the derivative used in a hedging transaction is expected to be, and has been, effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of the
hedged item.

Fair Value hedges are used to minimize the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset or a liability or an identified portion thereof that is
attributable to a particular risk.  At inception of a fair value hedge, we formally document the hedging relationship and our risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, including identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged, and how the hedging instrument�s effectiveness will be assessed.  Each reporting period, we evaluate the effectiveness of the hedge in
offsetting changes in the fair value of the hedged item.
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For both cash flow and fair value hedges, we would discontinue hedge accounting if it were determined that a derivative is not expected to be, or
has ceased to be, effective as a hedge.

We recognize gains and losses on swap contracts in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition in accumulated other comprehensive
income, net of tax effects; such gains and losses are reclassified into the line item in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in which the
hedged item is recorded in the same period the hedged item affects earnings. Hedge ineffectiveness and gains and losses on the excluded
component of a derivative in assessing hedge effectiveness are recorded in earnings in the same income statement line item that is used to record
hedge effectiveness. We recognize any gains and losses on interest rate lock commitments or forward sales commitments on residential
mortgage originations through mortgage-banking revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to amounts previously reported to conform to the classifications made in 2009

7
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(2) Securities

The composition of our securities portfolio is as follows:

March 31, 2009
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Available for Sale:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 22,110 $ 923 $ 535 $ 22,498
Trust preferred securities 20,652 � 7,433 13,219
Equity securities - Banks 549 � 369 180
U.S. Treasury securities 999 3 � 1,002
Corporate obligations 2,710 36 123 2,623
Foreign government bonds 750 � � 750

$ 47,770 $ 962 $ 8,460 40,272
Trading:
Mortgage-backed securities 12,378

$  52,650

December 31, 2008
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Available for Sale:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 22,423 $ 609 $ 784 $ 22,248
Trust preferred securities 20,460 � 7,594 12,866
Equity securities - Banks 549 � 298 251
U.S. Treasury securities 1,000 3 � 1,003
Corporate obligations 2,675 � 127 2,548
Foreign government bonds 750 � � 750

$ 47,857 $ 612 $ 8,803 39,666
Trading:
Mortgage-backed securities 12,566

$ 52,232

Contractual maturities of debt securities at March 31, 2009 are shown below.  Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated
(dollars in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Available for Sale:
Due in one year or less $ 3,366 $ 2,693
Due after one year through
five years 5,532 4,070
Due after five years through
ten years 288 166
Due after ten years 15,925 10,665
Mortgage-backed securities 22,110 22,498

$  47,221 40,092
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Trading:
Mortgage-backed securities 12,378

$  52,470
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The following table shows the level of our gross unrealized losses and the fair value of the associated securities by type and maturity for
securities available for sale at March 31, 2009:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

(dollars in thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Mortgage-backed
securities $ � $ � $ 5,026 $ 535 $ 5,026 $ 535
Trust preferred
securities 4,829 4,742 8,390 2,691 13,219 7,433
Corporate
obligations 1,120 123 � � 1,120 123
Equity securities -
Banks � � 180 369 180 369

$  5,949 $ 4,865 $ 13,596 $ 3,595 $ 19,545 $ 8,460

The trust preferred securities that we hold in our securities portfolio are issued by other banks and bank holding companies.  Certain of these
securities have experienced declines in value since acquisition. These declines have occurred primarily over the past year due to changes in the
market which has limited the demand for these securities and reduced their liquidity. We recorded other-than-temporary impairment (�OTTI�)
charges of $1.716 million on positions in pooled trust preferred collateralized debt obligations during the first three months of 2009.  In addition,
as a result of the adoption of FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. FAS 157-4 Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly, and FSP No. FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-2,
Recognition and Presentation of Other Than Temporary Impairments during the first quarter of 2009, we added back to retained earnings as a
cumulative effect of accounting change $1.148 million, net of taxes of $750,000, in OTTI previously taken that was determined to not be related
to credit deterioration (see Notes 6 and 9 for additional information). We determined that the remaining trust preferred securities were
temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2009.

The following shows the activity in OTTI related to credit losses for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

(dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 5,605
Reduction - cumulative effect of accounting change, (1,898)
Additional OTTI taken for credit losses 1,716
Balance at end of period $ 5,423

All of the remaining securities that are temporarily impaired are impaired due to declines in fair values resulting from changes in interest rates or
increased credit/liquidity spreads since the time they were purchased.  We have the ability and intent to hold these securities to maturity, or, for
equity securities, for the foreseeable future, and we expect these securities will be repaid in full, with no losses realized. As such, management
does not consider the impairments to be other-than-temporary.
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(3) Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses
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Loans receivable are summarized as follows:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Loans secured by first mortgages on real estate:
Residential $ 147,569 $ 138,551
Commercial 321,912 319,591
Consumer residential construction 65,723 69,496
Commercial construction 103,397 109,773

638,601 637,411
Commercial 86,943 90,896
Loans secured by second mortgages on real estate 142,067 135,873
Consumer 109,127 112,941
Loans secured by deposits and other 7,117 3,526
Total loans 983,855 980,647
Unamortized loan discounts, net (342) (386)
Unearned loan fees, net (3,043) (1,565)

$  980,470 $ 978,696

Included in consumer loan totals in the above table are overdrawn commercial and retail checking accounts totaling $296,000 and $378,000 as
of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. Included in net unearned loan fees and costs in the above table is unearned income on
installment loans of $3.904 million and $2.674 million as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 65, Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities, any loans which are originally originated for sale into
the secondary market and which we subsequently elect to transfer into the Company�s loan portfolio are valued at fair value at the time of the
transfer with any decline in value recorded as a charge to operating expense.

Information on the activity in transferred loans and related accretable yield is as follows for the three months ended March 31:

Loan Balance Accretable Yield Total
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Beginning balance $ 15,441 $ 16,907 $ 831 $ 1,114 $ 14,610 $ 15,793
Additional transfers � 660 � 47 � 613
Loans moved to real estate
acquired through
foreclosure (200) (280) � (14) (200) (266)
Charge-offs (1,056) (562) (74) � (982) (562)
Payments/amortization (30) � (41) (174) 11 174
Ending balance $ 14,155 $ 16,725 $ 716 $ 973 $ 13,439 $ 15,752

The following table provides information concerning nonperforming assets and past-due loans:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Nonaccruing loans $ 42,734 $ 38,763
Real estate acquired through foreclosure 22,403 18,994
Total nonperforming assets $ 65,137 $ 57,757
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Loans past-due 90 days or more and accruing $ 10,742 $ 9,679

Commercial loans we consider impaired at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 totaled $27.979 million and $26.695 million, respectively.
The specific reserve for loan losses for commercial impaired loans was approximately $980,000 at March 31, 2009 and $1.264 million at
December 31, 2008.
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The following table shows the breakout of commercial impaired loans:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Impaired loans with allowance for loan losses allocated in
accordance with SFAS 114 $ 10,199 $ 8,155
Impaired loans with no allowance for loan losses allocated
in accordance with SFAS 114 17,780 18,540

$  27,979 $ 26,695

Consumer loans we consider impaired at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 totaled $18.754 million and $20.945 million, respectively. The
specific reserve for loan losses for consumer impaired loans was approximately $231,000 at March 31, 2009 and $1.444 million at December 31,
2008.

The following table shows the breakout of consumer impaired loans at:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Impaired loans with allowance for loan losses allocated
in accordance with SFAS 114 $ 798 $ 7,410
Impaired loans with no allowance for loan losses
allocated in accordance with SFAS 114 17,956 13,535

$  18,754 $ 20,945

Troubled debt restructures (�TDRs�), which are loans that have been restructured due to the borrower�s inability to maintain a current status on the
loan, that are not included in the nonaccrual balance above amounted to approximately $9.744 million as of March 31, 2009 and $9.074 million
as of December 31, 2008.  Our TDRs are generally reviewed individually, in accordance with SFAS No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan, to determine impairment, accrual status, and the need for specific reserves.  For collateral dependent loans, we utilize the
fair value of the collateral in determining impairment.  For noncollateral dependent loans, we calculate the present value of expected future cash
flows to determine fair value and impairment.  We initially measure impairment of TDRs on a loan-by-loan basis.  The majority of our TDRs as
of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were collateral dependent and, therefore, any impairment was determined using the fair value of the
collateral.

Changes in the allowance for losses on loans are summarized as follows for the three months ended March 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of year $ 16,777 $ 12,789
Provision for loan losses 4,396 3,823
Charge-offs (5,856) (3,180)
Recoveries 198 376
Balance at end of year $ 15,515 $ 13,808
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(4) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding.  Diluted earnings per share is computed after adjusting the denominator of the basic earnings per share computation for the effects
of all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period. The dilutive effects of options, warrants and their equivalents are
computed using the �treasury stock� method.  For the three-month periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, all options (830,419 and 847,288,
respectively) were antidilutive and excluded from the computations due to our realized net loss.
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Information relating to the calculation of earnings per common share is summarized as follows for the three months ended March 31:

(dollars in thousands, except for per share data) 2009 2008
Net loss - basic and diluted $ (3,101) $ (3,278)
Weighted-average share outstanding - basic 6,452,631 6,351,831
Dilutive securities - options and warrants � �
Adjusted weighted-average shares outstanding - dilutive 6,452,631 6,351,831
Loss per share - basic $ (0.48) $ (0.52)
Loss per share - diluted $ (0.48) $ (0.52)

(5) Regulatory Matters

Various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies apply to First Mariner Bancorp and the Bank. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on our financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank�s capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of Total
and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2008, that the Bank
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. As of March 31, 2009, the Bank was considered �adequately capitalized� under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.

12
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Our regulatory capital amounts and ratios as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Minimum To be Well
Requirements Capitalized Under

for Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provision

(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of March 31, 2009
Total capital (to
risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $ 106,430 9.3% $ 91,283 8.0% $ 114,103 10.0%
Bank 94,231 9.1% 82,461 8.0% 103,076 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to
risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 53,215 4.7% 45,641 4.0% 68,462 6.0%
Bank 75,677 7.3% 41,230 4.0% 61,846 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to
average first quarter
assets):
Consolidated 53,215 4.0% 53,346 4.0% 66,682 5.0%
Bank 75,677 6.2% 49,008 4.0% 61,260 5.0%

As of December 31,
2008
Total capital (to
risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $ 110,650 9.9% $ 89,212 8.0% $ 111,515 10.0%
Bank 90,367 9.0% 80,322 8.0% 100,403 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to
risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 55,325 5.0% 44,606 4.0% 66,909 6.0%
Bank 70,693 7.0% 40,161 4.0% 60,242 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to
average fourth quarter
assets):
Consolidated 55,325 4.3% 51,122 4.0% 63,903 5.0%
Bank 70,693 6.0% 47,052 4.0% 58,815 5.0%

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the �FDIC�), through the Deposit Insurance Fund (�DIF�), insures deposits of accountholders up to
$250,000. The Bank pays an annual premium to provide for this insurance. On October 3, 2008, as a part of the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008, this maximum was raised from $100,000 to $250,000 through December 31, 2009.  Unless extended, the maximum
will revert back to the $100,000 amount at December 31, 2009.

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (�FHLB�) System and is required to maintain an investment in the stock of the FHLB
based on specific percentages of outstanding mortgages, total assets, or FHLB advances. Purchases and sales of stock are made directly with the
Bank at par value.
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We have entered into agreements with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond, FDIC, and the Maryland Banking Commissioner.  The material
terms of these agreements require us to:  (i) formulate a plan for the reduction and collection of adversely classified loans, nonaccrual loans, and
delinquent loans and otherwise improve our asset quality; (ii) develop a policy for managing the real estate we acquire by foreclosure or by deed
in lieu of foreclosure; (iii) periodically review the adequacy of our allowance for loan and lease losses; (iv) develop a plan for systematically
reducing and monitoring our residential real estate acquisition, development, and construction loan portfolio; (v) develop and implement a profit
and budget plan to improve our operating performance; (vi) develop a capital plan to maintain �well capitalized� status; (vii) submit plans to
reduce parent company leverage; and (viii) submit plans to improve enterprise-wide risk management and effectiveness of internal audit
programs.  We have also agreed to provide the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond advance notice involving significant capital transactions.

Subsequent to March 31, 2009, the Bank entered into an agreement with the FDIC relating to alleged violations of consumer protection
regulations relative to its fair lending practices pursuant to which it consented to the issuance of certain Orders.  See Note 10 for more
information about these Orders.

These agreements will subject us to increased regulatory scrutiny and may have an adverse impact on our business operations.  Failure to
comply with the provisions of these agreements may result in more restrictive actions from our regulators, including more secure and restrictive
enforcement actions.
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(6) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We group financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities
are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.  These levels are:

Level 1 Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets.  Valuations are obtained from readily available
pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.  Valuations are obtained from third party
pricing services for identical or comparable assets or liabilities which use observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such
as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities.
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The following table presents fair value measurements for assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2009:
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Significant
Other Significant Total Changes

Quoted Observable Unobservable Trading In Fair Values
Carrying Prices Inputs Inputs Gains and Included In

(dollars in thousands) Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (Losses) Period Earnings
Trading securities $ 12,378 $ � $ 12,378 $ � $ 191 $ 191
Securities available for sale 40,272 � 38,320 1,952 � (1,716)(1)
Long-term borrowings at fair
value 63,496 � 63,496 � 577 577
Interest rate swaps
(notional amount of $60,000) 61,374 � 61,374 � � (175)
Mortgage servicing rights 1,227 � � 1,227 � (3)
Interest rate lock
commitments
(notional amount of $252,518) 255,605 � 255,605 � � 24
Forward contracts to sell
mortgage-backed securities
(notional amount of $160,250) 158,778 � 158,778 � � (1,505)

(1) Represents other-than-temporary-impairment charges taken on certain Level 3 securities
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The fair value of trading securities is based on bid quotations received from securities dealers or modeling utilizing estimated cash flows,
depending on the circumstances of the individual security.  The fair value of securities available for sale is based on bid quotations received from
securities dealers, bid prices received from an external pricing service, or modeling utilizing estimated cash flows, depending on the
circumstances of the individual security.

We adopted FSP No. FAS 157-4 Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly
Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly, and FSP No. FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other
Than Temporary Impairments, for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.  As a result of the adoption of the FSPs, impairment recognition for the
company�s four pooled preferred securities are now segmented into credit and noncredit related components.  Any fair value adjustment due to
identified credit-related components will be recorded as an adjustment to current period earnings, while noncredit-related fair value adjustments
will be recorded through other comprehensive income.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2009, we determined that, based on our most recent estimate of cash flows,
other-than-temporary-impairment had occurred with respect to two of our pooled preferred securities. Under the revised guidance, the amount of
OTTI that is recognized through earnings is determined by comparing the present value of the expected cash flows to the amortized cost of the
security.  The discount rate used to determine the credit loss is the expected book yield on the security.  The credit loss estimated under this
method totaled $1.716 million and was charged to operating earnings in the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

The new FSPs also required that any previously recognized OTTI that was not credit related be recorded as an adjustment to the periods
beginning retained earnings. Accordingly, $1.148 million ($1.898 million fair value adjustment less deferred taxes of
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$750,000) of previously recognized OTTI was added back to other accumulated comprehensive loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
retained earnings.

The tables later in this Note show details concerning assumptions used to determine credit and noncredit-related losses and other details on the
our pooled preferred securities.

Financial instruments are considered Level 3 when their values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or
similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.  Level 3 financial instruments also include those for
which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation. As of March 31, 2009, $1.952 million ($10.938
million par value) of our securities available for sale (four securities) were classified as Level 3, all of which are pooled trust preferred
securities.  The ongoing market environment has become increasingly inactive for these security types and made fair value pricing more
subjective.  The amount of Level 3 securities will likely continue to be a function of market conditions and additional security transfers from
Level 2 to Level 3 could result if further market inactivity occurs.

The following table details the four Level 3 securities:

(1) Remaining (3)
Percent Par Current Rating/Outlook (2) Auction (4)

(dollars in
thousands) Class Subordinate Value Moody�s Fitch Maturity Call Date Index
ALESCO Preferred
Funding VII C-1 9.33% $ 1,000 Ca CC 7/23/2035 MAR 2015 3ML + 1.5%
ALESCO Preferred
Funding XI C-1 6.46% 4,938 Ca C 12/23/2036 JUNE 2016 3ML + 1.2%
MM Community
Funding B 9.90% 2,500 Caa2 CCC 8/1/2031 N/A 6ML + 3.1%
MM Community
Funding IX B-1 10.51% 2,500 Caa3 CC 5/1/2033 N/A 3ML + 1.8%

(1) Indicates the estimated percentage of issued securities within the structure that are subordinate in payment of principal and interest to the
notes owed by the bank

(2) Ratings as of March 31, 2009

(3) Under the terms of the offering, if the notes have not been redeemed in full prior to the indicated call date then an auction of the
Collateral Debt Securities will be conducted and the collateral will be sold and the notes redeemed. If the auction is not successful, the Collateral
Manager will conduct auctions on a quarterly basis until the rated notes are redeemed in full.

(4) 3/6ML - 3 or 6 Month LIBOR. LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate)  � daily reference rate based on the interest rates at which banks
offer to lend unsecured funds to other banks in the London wholesale money market or interbank market

Classification of Level 3 indicates that significant valuation assumptions are not consistently observable in the market and, as such, fair values
are derived using the best available data.  We calculated fair value for these four securities by using a present value of future cash flows model,
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which incorporated assumptions as follows:

Key Model Assumptions Used In Pricing
Future Credit $ Liquidity Liquidity $

Default (1) MTM (2) Premium (3) MTM Adj (4)
ALESCO Preferred Funding
VII 36.00% $ 52.91 12.00% $ 31.05
ALESCO Preferred Funding XI 36.00% $ 55.20 12.00% $ 45.75
MM Community Funding 36.65% $ 70.52 12.00% $ 38.33
MM Community Funding IX 36.00% $ 62.46 12.00% $ 43.99

(1) The anticipated level of total defaults from the issuers within the pool of performing collateral as of March 31, 2009.  There are no
recoveries assumed on any default.

(2) The credit mark to market represents the discounted value of future cash flows after the assumption of current and future defaults
discounted at the book rate of interest on the security

(3) The risk of being unable to sell the instrument for cash at short notice without significant costs, usually indicative of the level of trading
activity for a specific security or class of securities

(4) The liquidity mark to market adjustment on the security represents the difference between the value of the discounted cash flows based
on the book interest rate and the value discounted at the liquidity premium.  The credit MTM less the liquidity MTM equals the estimated fair
value price of the security.
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Model
Result Fair Value

(in thousands)
ALESCO Preferred Funding VII $ 21.86 $ 219
ALESCO Preferred Funding XI 9.45 466
MM Community Funding 32.20 805
MM Community Funding IX 18.48 462

$  1,952

Servicing Rights

As of March 31, 2009, mortgage servicing rights (�MSRs�) were classified as Level 3.  We calculate the fair value of MSRs by using a
present value of future cash flows model.
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Fair value of servicing rights are estimated based on the future servicing income of the servicing receivables utilizing management�s best estimate
of remaining loan lives and discounted at the original discount rate.

A summary of the key economic assumptions used to measure total MSRs as of March 31, 2009 and the sensitivity of the fair values to adverse
changes in those assumptions follows (dollars in thousands):

Fair value of MSRs $ 1,227
Weighted-average life (in years) (1) 4.8
Discount rate 6.75%
Option-adjusted spread (�OAS�) 2.75%

Sensitivity Analysis
Discount Rate Assumption (Change in OAS):
Decrease in fair value from 100bp adverse change $ 35
Decrease in fair value from 200bp adverse change 69
Decrease in fair value from 300bp adverse change 102

Prepayment Speed Assumption (Assumed Age Borrower Vacates Property)
Decrease in fair value from 5-year adverse change $ 267
Decrease in fair value from 10-year adverse change 587
Decrease in fair value from 15-year adverse change 909

(1)  The majority of our MSRs are related to reverse mortgages for which there are no calculable contractual lives

The value of MSRs is derived from the net positive cash flows associated with the servicing contracts.  The Company receives a net servicing
fee of generally $240 per loan annually.  The precise market value of MSRs cannot be readily determined because these assets are not actively
traded in stand-alone markets.  Our MSRs valuation process uses a discounted cash flow model combined with analysis of current market data to
arrive at an estimate of fair value at each balance sheet date.  The key assumptions used in the valuation of MSRs include mortgage prepayment
speeds (average lives), which are a function of the age of the borrower, and the discount rate (projected LIBOR plus option-adjusted spread). 
Changes in fair value based on variations in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption
to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the retained interest is
calculated without changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another, which might magnify or
counteract the sensitivities. The discount rate used to determine the present value of estimated future net servicing income represents
management�s expectation of the required rate of return investors in the market would expect for an asset with similar risk.
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The table below presents a reconciliation of financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) during the first quarter of 2009:
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(dollars in thousands) Securities MSRs
Balance at beginning of period $ 2,507 $ 1,081
Additions to and transfers into Level 3 � 207
MSR amortization � (58)
Total realized losses included in other comprehensive income (1,716) �
Total realized losses recaptured through retained earnings as
cumulative effect of accounting change 1,898 �
Total unrealized losses included in other comprehensive income (737) (3)
Balance at end of period $ 1,952 $ 1,227

Derivative Loan Commitments

Commitments to Originate Loans. We engage an experienced third party to estimate the fair market value of our interest rate lock commitments
(�IRLC�). IRLCs are valued based upon mandatory pricing quotes from correspondent lenders less estimated costs to process and settle the loan.
Fair value is adjusted for the estimated probability of the loan closing with the borrower.

Forward Sales of Mortgage-Backed Securities Contracts. Fair value of these commitments is determined based upon the quoted market values
of the securities.

We may be required, from time to time, to measure certain other financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These
adjustments to fair value usually result from application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. For
assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of March 31, 2009, the following table provides the level of valuation assumptions
used to determine each adjustment and the carrying value of the assets:
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Significant
Other Significant

Quoted Observable Unobservable
Carrying Prices Inputs Inputs

(dollars in thousands) Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired Alt A loans $ 18,754 $ � $ � $ 18,754
Other impaired loans 27,979 � � 27,979
Real estate acquired through
foreclosure 22,403 � � 22,403
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Impaired ALT A loans

In accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (�AICPA�) Statement of Position (�SOP�) 03-3, Accounting for Certain
Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer, we record repurchased loans at their estimated fair value at the time of repurchase. At
March 31, 2009, we maintained $5.315 million of ALT A loans repurchased in accordance with covenants in our sales agreements with
investors. Such loans amounted to $6.335 million as of December 31, 2008. We did not repurchase any loans due to early payment default
during the first quarter of 2009.

In establishing the loan�s estimated fair value, management makes significant assumptions concerning the ultimate collectibility of delinquent
loans and their ultimate realizable value. While these projections are made with the most current data available to management, actual realized
losses could differ due to the changes in the borrowers� willingness or ability to resolve the delinquency status, changes in the actual volume of
future repurchases, changes in the real estate market, or changes in market values of those loans which are liquidated. We consider these
collateral values to be estimated using Level 3 inputs. Management updates the assumptions utilized in determining fair value continually as
greater experience becomes available.

In accordance with SFAS No. 65, Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities, any loans which are originally originated for sale into
the secondary market and which we subsequently elect to transfer into the Company�s loan portfolio are valued at fair value at the time of the
transfer with any decline in value recorded as a charge to operating expense. At March 31, 2009, we held $13.439 million in primarily ALT A
loans in our portfolio that were transferred from loans held for sale at fair value. Such loans
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amounted to $14.610 million at December 31, 2008.

Other Impaired Loans

Loans for which it is probable that the Company will not collect all principal and interest due according to contractual terms are measured for
impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan. Allowable methods for
estimating fair value include using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans or, where a loan is determined not to be collateral
dependent, using the discounted cash flow method. In our determination of fair value, we have categorized both methods of valuation as
estimates based on Level 3 inputs.

If the impaired loan is identified as collateral dependent, then the fair value method of measuring the amount of impairment is utilized. This
method requires obtaining a current independent appraisal or utilizing some other method of valuation for the collateral and applying a discount
factor to the value based on our loan review policy and procedures.

If the impaired loan is determined not to be collateral dependent, then the discounted cash flow method is used. This method requires the
impaired loan to be recorded at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan�s effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate of a loan is the contractual interest rate adjusted for any net deferred loan fees or costs, premiums, or discounts existing at
origination or acquisition of the loan.

Management establishes a specific reserve for loans that have an estimated fair value that is below the carrying value. Impaired loans (including
ALT A loans) had a carrying amount of $46.733 million as of March 31, 2009 and $47.640 million as of December 31, 2008, with specific
reserves of $1.211 million as of March 31, 2009 and $2.708 million as of December 31, 2008.

When there is little prospect of collecting either principal or interest, loans, or portions of loans, may be charged-off to the allowance for loan
losses. Losses are recognized in the period an obligation becomes uncollectible. The recognition of a loss does not mean that the loan has
absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off the loan even though partial recovery
may occur in the future. During the first three months of 2009, the Company charged-off $4.184 million of impaired loans to the allowance for
loan losses.

Real Estate Acquired Through Foreclosure
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We record foreclosed real estate assets at the lower of cost or estimated fair value on their acquisition dates and at the lower of such initial
amount or estimated fair value less estimated selling costs thereafter. Estimated fair value is generally based upon independent appraisal of the
collateral or listing prices supported by broker recommendation. We consider these collateral values to be estimated using Level 3 inputs. We
held real estate acquired through foreclosure of $22.403 million as of March 31, 2009 and $18.994 million as of December 31, 2008. During the
first three months of 2009, we added $7.229 million, net of reserves, to real estate acquired through foreclosure and recorded write-downs and
losses on sales, included in noninterest expense, of $2.114 million. We disposed of $1.882 million of foreclosed properties.

The carrying value and estimated fair value of financial instruments are summarized in the following table. Certain financial instruments
disclosed previously in this footnote are excluded from this table.

March 31, 2009
Carrying Estimated

(dollars in thousands) Value Fair Value
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 107,973 $ 107,973
Loans held for sale 85,298 85,298
Loans receivable 980,470 1,026,087
Restricted stock investments 7,619 7,619
Liabilities:
Deposits 1,021,807 1,046,513
Long- and short-term borrowings 161,511 178,389
Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures 73,724 74,688

Pricing or valuation models are applied using current market information to estimate fair value. In some cases considerable judgment is required
to interpret market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the
amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market
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assumptions and/or estimation methods may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount for cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Loans Held for Sale
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Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market, which may be indicated by the committed sales price for loans under contract to
sell but are not yet funded or by third party quoted market values for loans not yet committed to be sold. Due to the short holding period of these
loans, generally 14 to 60 days, the carrying amount of loans held for sale is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Loans Receivable
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Loans were segmented into portfolios with similar financial characteristics. Loans were also segmented by type such as residential, multifamily,
and nonresidential construction and land, second mortgage loans, commercial, and consumer. Each loan category was further segmented by
fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and performing and nonperforming categories. The fair value of each loan category was calculated by
discounting anticipated cash flows based on weighted-average contractual maturity, weighted-average coupon, and discount rate.

The fair value for nonperforming loans was determined utilizing SFAS No. 114.

Restricted Stock Investments
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The carrying value of restricted stock investments is a reasonable estimate of fair value as these investments do not have a readily available
market.

Deposits
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The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing deposits, interest-bearing NOW accounts, money market, and
statement savings accounts, is deemed to be equal to the carrying amounts. The fair value of certificates of deposit is based on the discounted
value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate for certificates of deposit was estimated using the rate currently offered for deposits of similar
remaining maturities.

Long- and Short-Term Borrowings and Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures
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Long- and short-term borrowings and junior subordinated notes were segmented into categories with similar financial characteristics. Carrying
values were discounted using a cash flow approach based on market rates.

Other Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments
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The disclosure of fair value amounts does not include the fair values of any intangibles, including core deposit intangibles. Core deposit
intangibles represent the value attributable to total deposits based on an expected duration of customer relationships.

Limitations
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Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about financial instruments.
These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from a one-time sale of our total holdings of a particular financial
instrument. Because no market exists for a significant portion of our financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect estimates.

(7) Segment Information

We are in the business of providing financial services, and we operate in three business segments�commercial and consumer banking, consumer
finance, and mortgage-banking. Commercial and consumer banking is conducted through the Bank and involves delivering a broad range of
financial services, including lending and deposit taking, to individuals and commercial
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enterprises. This segment also includes our treasury and administrative functions. Consumer finance is conducted through Mariner Finance, and
involves originating small direct consumer loans and the purchase of retail installment sales contracts. Mortgage-banking is conducted through
First Mariner Mortgage and Next Generation Financial Services, divisions of the Bank, and involves originating first- and second-lien residential
mortgages for sale in the secondary market and to the Bank. The results of our subsidiary, FM Appraisals, are included in the mortgage-banking
segment.

The following table presents certain information regarding our business segments:

For the three month period ended March 31, 2009:
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Commercial and Consumer Mortgage-
(dollars in thousands) Consumer Banking Finance Banking (1) Total
Interest income $ 13,333 $ 6,005 $ 1,101 $ 20,439
Interest expense 7,847 808 706 9,361
Net interest income 5,486 5,197 395 11,078
Provision for loan losses 2,140 996 1,260 4,396
Net interest income (loss) after provision for
loan losses 3,346 4,201 (865) 6,682
Noninterest income 2,686 913 4,673 8,272
Noninterest expense 11,890 4,369 4,236 20,495
Net intersegment income 226 � (226) �
Net (loss) income before income taxes $ (5,632) $ 745 $ (654) $ (5,541)
Total assets $ 1,192,731 $ 101,662 $ 85,298 $ 1,379,691

(1) Includes $3.502 million in total expenses (included in interest expense, provision for loan losses, and noninterest expenses) related primarily
to residential mortgage loans originated prior to 2008 from the Company�s former wholesale division. Excluding those expenses, the
mortgage-banking segment would have realized net income before income taxes of $2.848 million.

For the three month period ended March 31, 2008:
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Commercial and Consumer Mortgage-
(dollars in thousands) Consumer Banking Finance Banking (1) Total
Interest income $ 15,796 $ 4,766 $ 1,162 $ 21,724
Interest expense 7,705 910 1,139 9,754
Net interest income 8,091 3,856 23 11,970
Provision for loan losses 1,455 823 1,545 3,823
Net interest income (loss) after provision for
loan losses 6,636 3,033 (1,522) 8,147
Noninterest income 2,428 828 1,372 4,628
Noninterest expense 11,751 3,326 3,404 18,481
Net intersegment income 31 � (31) �
Net (loss) income before income taxes $ (2,656) $ 535 $ (3,585) $ (5,706)
Total assets $ 1,102,584 $ 83,850 $ 97,278 $ 1,283,712

(1) Includes $2.523 million in total expenses (included in interest expense, provision for loan losses, and noninterest expenses) related primarily
to residential mortgage loans originated prior to 2008 from the Company�s former wholesale division. Excluding those expenses, the
mortgage-banking segment would have realized a net loss before income taxes of $1.062 million.

(8) Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as net income (loss) plus transactions and other occurrences which are the result of nonowner changes
in equity. Our nonowner equity changes are comprised of unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities and interest rate swaps that
will be accumulated with net income (loss) in determining comprehensive income (loss).
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Components of our comprehensive loss are as follows for the three months ended March 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Net loss $ (3,101) $ (3,278)
Other comprehensive income items:
Cumulative effect of accounting change for certain investments (net of tax expense
of $750 and $0, respectively) 1,148 �
Unrealized holding losses on securities arising during the period (net of tax benefit
of $1,153 and $375, respectively) (1,771) (575)
Unrealized holding losses on swaps arising during the period (net of tax benefit of
$371 and $0, respectively) (569) �
Less: reclassification adjustment for losses on securities (net of tax benefit of $(677)
and $0, respectively) included in net loss 1,039 �
Total other comprehensive loss (153) (575)
Total comprehensive loss $ (3,254) $ (3,853)

(9) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Pronouncements Adopted

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued three final FSPs intended to provide additional application guidance and enhanced disclosures regarding fair
value measurements and impairments of securities. FSP No. FAS 157-4 Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly, provided guidelines for making fair value
measurements more consistent with the principles presented in SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement. FSP No. FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1,
Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial instruments enhanced consistency in financial reporting by increasing the frequency of fair
value disclosures. FSP No. FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other Than Temporary Impairments, provided
increased guidance to create increased consistency and clarity in accounting for and presenting impairment losses on securities.

The FSPs are effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. Entities were permitted to adopt the new FSPs for interim and
annual periods ending after March 15, 2009. First Mariner elected to adopt the new FSPs effective with the quarter ending March 31, 2009 and
recorded a $1.148 million cumulative effect of accounting change to retained earnings.

FSP No. FAS 157-4 relates to determining fair value when there is no active market or where the price inputs being used represent distressed
sales. It reaffirms the concept that assets should be valued at a level that would be obtained in an orderly transaction, and the need to use
judgment in determining fair value if an active market has become inactive.

FSP No. FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 now requires that disclosures for fair value of financial instruments not currently reflected on the balance
sheet at fair value be prepared and presented quarterly. Previously, these were annual disclosures.
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FSP Nos. FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 are intended to provide greater consistency to the timing of impairment charges, and bring clarity to
investors about the credit and noncredit components of impaired debt securities that are not expected to be sold. The measure of impairment in
comprehensive income remains fair value. The FSP also requires more timely disclosure regarding expected cash flows, credit losses, and an
aging of securities with unrealized losses.

See additional information about our adoption of these FSPs in Note 6.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This statement requires
enhanced disclosures in order to enable investors to better understand the effects of derivative instruments and hedging activities on an entity�s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. This statement is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after
November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 161 have been adopted for the interim period
ended March 31, 2009.

(10) Subsequent Event

On April 22, 2009, the Bank entered into an agreement (the �Consent Agreement�) with the FDIC relating to alleged violations of consumer
protection regulations relative to its fair lending practices pursuant to which it consented to the issuance of a Order to Cease and Desist, Order
for Restitution, and Order to Pay (the �Orders�). The Bank did not admit to the FDIC�s allegations
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that it discriminated against any �protected class� borrowers on a limited number of loans, many of them made to Hispanic borrowers in Northern
Virginia, but agreed to settle the dispute to avoid further distraction and litigation expense.

The Consent Agreement and Orders are based on the FDIC�s belief that the Bank engaged in acts of discrimination in violation of the Equal
Credit Opportunity Act (the �ECOA�) and the Fair Housing Act (the �FHA�) in 2005, 2006 and 2007 and in violation of Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act (�Section 5�) in 2006 and 2007.  The alleged violations of the ECOA and the FHA are based on the FDIC�s belief that the
Bank charged higher prices to certain Hispanic, African American and female borrowers (�Affected Borrowers�) under residential mortgage loans,
in the form of discretionary interest rate and point �overages�, than it charged to similarly-situated non-minority borrowers.  The alleged violations
of Section 5 are based on the FDIC�s belief that the Bank�s disclosures for its payment-option adjustable-rate mortgage loans contained
misleading information regarding the costs of the loans.

By signing the Consent Agreement, the Bank consented to the issuance of the Orders and the FDIC agreed to take no further action against the
Bank in respect of the alleged violations.  The Orders require the Bank to pay up to $950,000 in restitution to the Affected Borrowers.  It also
imposes a civil money penalty of $50,000.  The Bank had reserved $950,000 in the final quarter of 2008 to cover the cost of settling the claims
of the Affected Borrowers.  Other than requiring the Bank to cease and desist from violating the ECOA, the FHA and Section 5, the Bank must
develop and implement policies and procedures to (i) monitor and ensure compliance with fair lending laws and disclosure laws and regulations,
(ii) ensure that the costs, terms, features and risks of the loans and services are adequately disclosed to applicants, and (iii) develop an operating
plan to maintain quality control, internal audit, and compliance management systems that are effective in ensuring that the Bank�s residential
mortgage lending activities comply with all applicable laws, regulations and Bank policies.  The Bank must also conduct or sponsor quarterly
financial literacy and education courses where it provides residential mortgage loans.  Further, the Bank is prohibited from offering
�payment-option� adjustable rate mortgage loans, although the Bank ceased offering these loans in 2007.  Management believes that neither the
Consent Agreement nor the Order will have a material impact on the Bank�s financial performance in 2009.

Item 2 - Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

When used in this report, the terms �the Company�, �we�, �us�, and �our� refer to First Mariner Bancorp and, unless the context requires otherwise, its
consolidated subsidiaries.  The following discussion should be read and reviewed in conjunction with Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations set forth in First Mariner Bancorp�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain forward-looking language within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995.  Statements may include expressions about our confidence, policies, and strategies, provisions and allowance for loan losses, adequacy
of capital levels, and liquidity.  All statements included or incorporated by reference in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, other than
statements that are purely historical, are forward-looking statements. Statements that include the use of terminology such as �anticipates,� �expects,�
�intends,� �plans,� �believes,� �estimates,� and similar expressions also identify forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are based
on our current intent, belief, and expectations. Forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include, but are not limited to,
statements of our plans, strategies, objectives, intentions, including, among other statements, statements involving our projected loan and deposit
growth, loan collateral values, collectibility of loans, anticipated changes in other operating income, payroll and branching expenses, branch,
office and product expansion of the Company, and liquidity and capital levels.  Such forward-looking statements involve certain risks and
uncertainties, including general economic conditions, competition in the geographic and business areas in which we operate, inflation,
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fluctuations in interest rates, legislation, and government regulation.  These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject
to certain risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. For a more complete discussion of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements, see the �Risk Factors� discussion in the periodic reports that
First Mariner Bancorp files with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�). Except as required by applicable laws, we do not intend to
publish updates or revisions of any forward-looking statements we make to reflect new information, future events, or otherwise.

The Company

First Mariner Bancorp is a bank holding company incorporated under the laws of Maryland and registered under the federal Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended.  First Mariner Bancorp�s business is conducted primarily through its wholly-owned subsidiaries:  First
Mariner Bank; Mariner Finance, LLC; and FM Appraisals, LLC.  The Company had over 1,100 employees (approximately 983 full-time
equivalent employees) as of March 31, 2009.

The Bank, which is the largest operating subsidiary of First Mariner Bancorp with assets exceeding $1.270 billion as of March 31, 2009, is
engaged in the general commercial banking business, with particular attention and emphasis on the needs of
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individuals and small to mid-sized businesses, and delivers a wide range of financial products and services that are offered by many larger
competitors.  The Bank�s primary market area for its core banking operations, which consist of traditional commercial and consumer lending, as
well as retail and commercial deposit operations, is central Maryland as well as portions of Maryland�s eastern shore.  The Bank also has one
branch in Pennsylvania.   Products and services of the Bank include traditional deposit products, a variety of consumer and commercial loans,
residential and commercial mortgage and construction loans, wire transfer services, nondeposit investment products, and Internet banking and
similar services.  Most importantly, the Bank provides customers with access to local Bank officers who are empowered to act with flexibility to
meet customers� needs in an effort to foster and develop long-term loan and deposit relationships. The Bank is an independent community bank
and its deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the �FDIC�).

First Mariner Mortgage, a division of the Bank, engages in mortgage-banking activities, providing mortgages and associated products to
customers and selling most of those mortgages into the secondary market.  First Mariner Mortgage has offices in Maryland, Delaware,
Massachusetts, and North Carolina.

NGFS, a division of the Bank, engages in the origination of reverse and conventional mortgages, providing these products directly through
commission based loan officers throughout the United States.  NGFS originates reverse mortgages for sale to Fannie Mae and other private
investors.  The Bank does not originate any reverse mortgages for its portfolio and currently sells all of its reverse mortgage originations into the
secondary market.  The Bank retains the servicing rights on reverse mortgages sold to Fannie Mae.  NGFS is one of the largest originators of
reverse mortgages in the United States.

Mariner Finance engages in traditional consumer finance activities, making small direct cash loans to individuals, the purchase of installment
loan sales contracts from local merchants and retail dealers of consumer goods, and loans to individuals via direct mail solicitations, as well as a
low volume of mortgage loans. Mariner Finance currently operates branches in Maryland, Delaware, Virginia, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and
Tennessee.  Mariner Finance had total assets of $101.662 million as of March 31, 2009.

FM Appraisals is a residential real estate appraisal preparation and management company that is headquartered in Baltimore City. FM
Appraisals offers appraisal services for residential real estate lenders, including appraisal preparation, the compliance oversight of
sub-contracted appraisers, appraisal ordering and administration, and appraisal review services. FM Appraisals provides these services to First
Mariner Mortgage, NGFS, and Mariner Finance.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company�s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (�GAAP�) and follow general practices within the industry in which it operates.  Application of these principles requires management
to make estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes. These estimates, assumptions, and judgments are based on information available as of the date of the consolidated financial statements;
accordingly, as this information changes, the consolidated financial statements could reflect different estimates, assumptions, and judgments.
Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions, and judgments and, as such, have a greater possibility of
producing results that could be materially different than originally reported. Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necessary when assets
and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the value of an asset not carried on the consolidated financial
statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be established, or when an asset or liability needs to be
recorded contingent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently results in more financial statement volatility. 
When applying accounting policies in such areas that are subjective in nature, management must use its best judgment to arrive at the carrying
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value of certain assets and liabilities.  Below is a discussion of our critical accounting policies.

Allowance for loan losses

A variety of estimates impact the carrying value of the loan portfolio including the calculation of the allowance for loan losses, valuation of
underlying collateral, and the timing of loan charge-offs.

The allowance is established and maintained at a level that management believes is adequate to cover losses resulting from the inability of
borrowers to make required payments on loans.  Estimates for loan losses are arrived at by analyzing risks associated with specific loans and the
loan portfolio.  Current trends in delinquencies and charge-offs, the views of Bank regulators, changes in the size and composition of the loan
portfolio, and peer comparisons are also factors.  The analysis also requires consideration of the economic climate and direction and change in
the interest rate environment, which may impact a borrower�s ability to pay, legislation impacting the banking industry, and environmental and
economic conditions specific to the Bank�s service areas.  Because the calculation of the allowance for loan losses relies on estimates and
judgments relating to inherently uncertain events, results may differ from our estimates.
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Securities available for sale

Securities available for sale are evaluated periodically to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. The term
�other-than-temporary� is not intended to indicate a permanent decline in value. Rather, it means that the prospects for near term recovery of value
are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value of the security.

The initial indication of other-than-temporary impairment (�OTTI�)for both debt and equity securities is a decline in the market value below the
amount recorded for an investment. In determining whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, we consider whether it is more likely than
not that we will be required to sell the security before full recovery of the value. For marketable equity securities, we also consider the issuer�s
financial condition, capital strength, and near-term prospects. For debt securities and for perpetual preferred securities that are treated as debt
securities for the purpose of other-than-temporary analysis, we also consider the cause of the price decline (general level of interest rates and
industry- and issuer-specific factors), the issuer�s financial condition, near-term prospects and current ability to make future payments in a timely
manner, the issuer�s ability to service debt, and any change in agencies� ratings at evaluation date from acquisition date and any likely imminent
action. Once a decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the security is segmented into credit and noncredit-related
components.  Any fair value adjustment due to identified credit related components is recorded as an adjustment to current period earnings,
while noncredit-related fair value adjustments will be recorded through other comprehensive income.

Deferred income taxes

Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are subject to management�s judgment based upon available evidence that future realization is
not likely.

Loan income recognition

Interest income on loans is accrued at the contractual rate based on the principal outstanding. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan
origination costs are deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over the contractual loan terms. Accrual of interest is discontinued when its
receipt is in doubt, which typically occurs when a loan becomes impaired. Any interest accrued to income in the year when interest accruals are
discontinued is generally reversed. Management may elect to continue the accrual of interest when a loan is in the process of collection and the
estimated fair value of the collateral is sufficient to satisfy the principal balance and accrued interest. Loans are returned to accrual status once
the doubt concerning collectibility has been removed and the borrower has demonstrated the ability to pay and remain current. Payments on
nonaccrual loans are generally applied to principal.

Loan Repurchases

Our sales agreements with investors who buy our loans generally contain covenants which may require us to repurchase loans under certain
provisions, including delinquencies, or return premiums paid by those investors should the loan be paid off early.  These covenants are usual and
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customary within the mortgage-banking industry.  We maintain a reserve (included in other liabilities) for potential losses relating to these sales
covenants.

Loans repurchased are accounted for under American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (�AICPA�) Statement of Position (�SOP�) 03-3,
Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer.  Under the SOP, loans repurchased must be recorded at market value at
the time of repurchase with any deficiency for recording the loan compared to proceeds paid charged to earnings.  Repurchased loans are carried
on the balance sheet in the loan portfolio.  Any further change in the underlying risk profile or further impairment is recorded as a specific
reserve in the allowance for loan losses through the provision for loan losses.

Repurchased loans which are foreclosed upon are transferred to Real Estate Acquired Through Foreclosure at the time of ratification of
foreclosure and recorded at estimated fair value.  These assets remain in Real Estate Acquired Through Foreclosure until their disposition.  Any
declines in value subsequent to foreclosure reduce the carrying amounts through a charge to noninterest expense.

Real Estate Acquired Through Foreclosure

We record foreclosed real estate assets at the lower of cost or estimated fair value on their acquisition dates and at the lower
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of such initial amount or estimated fair value less estimated selling costs thereafter.   Estimated fair value is based upon many subjective factors,
including location and condition of the property and current economic conditions, among other things.  Because the calculation of fair value
relies on estimates and judgments relating to inherently uncertain events, results may differ from our estimates.

Write-downs at time of transfer are made through the allowance for loan losses.  Write-downs subsequent to transfer are included in our
noninterest expenses, along with operating income, net of related expenses of such properties and gains or losses realized upon disposition.

Recent Developments

On April 22, 2009, the Bank entered into a consent agreement with the FDIC pursuant to which it agreed to the issuance of consent orders
relating to the FDIC�s investigation into whether the Bank violated federal fair lending laws.  Without admitting any wrongdoing, the Bank
agreed to the orders to settle the investigation.  Among other things, the consent orders require the Bank to deposit $950,000 into a restitution
fund to be used for paying restitution to affected borrowers and to pay a $50,000 civil money penalty.  Details of these consent orders are
discussed in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this report.

Financial Condition

At March 31, 2009, our total assets were $1.380 billion compared to $1.307 billion at December 31, 2008, an increase of 5.5%. Earning assets
decreased $11.386 million or (1.0)% to $1.133 billion at March 31, 2009 from $1.144 billion at December 31, 2008.  The growth in assets was
due primarily to increases in cash and due from banks (+$79.860 million), loans outstanding (+$1.774 million), and loans held for sale
(+$25.095 million), partially offset by a decrease in other earning assets (-$39.226 million).  We funded the growth in assets with increases in
deposits (+$71.574 million) and short-term borrowings (+$6.881 million).

We continued to develop our bank branching and mortgage loan office network, expand our commercial and retail business development efforts,
grow Mariner Finance, and successfully develop and market our deposit and loan products.

Securities

We utilize the securities portfolio as part of our overall asset/liability management practices to enhance interest revenue while providing
necessary liquidity for the funding of loan growth or deposit withdrawals.  We continually monitor the credit risk associated with corporate
investments and diversify the risk in the corporate portfolio.  As of March 31, 2009, we held $12.378 million in securities classified as trading
and $40.272 million in securities classified as available for sale (�AFS�). As of December 31, 2008, we held $12.566 million in securities
classified as trading and $39.666 million in securities classified as AFS.
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Trading Securities

Trading securities remained relatively stable at $12.378 million at March 31, 2009 compared to $12.566 at December 31, 2008. The entire
trading security portfolio consists of mortgage-backed securities as of both March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Securities Available for Sale

AFS securities remained relatively stable at $40.272 million at March 31, 2009 compared to $39.666 million at December 31, 2008.  We
recorded $1.716 million in OTTI charges related to two pooled trust preferred securities during the first quarter of 2009.  In addition, during the
first quarter of 2009, we added back to retained earnings as a cumulative effect of accounting change $1.148 million (net of tax effect) in OTTI
previously recorded that was determined not to be related to credit deterioration (see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).  At
March 31, 2009, our net unrealized loss on securities classified as available for sale totaled $7.498 million compared to a net unrealized loss of
$8.191 million at December 31, 2008.

Changes in current market conditions, such as interest rates and the economic uncertainties in the mortgage, housing, and banking industries,
have severely impacted the securities market. The secondary market for various types of securities has been limited and has negatively impacted
securities values. Quarterly, we review each security in our AFS portfolio to determine the nature of any decline in value and evaluate if any
impairment should be classified as OTTI.
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The trust preferred securities we hold in our securities portfolio were issued by other banks and bank holding companies.  Certain of these
securities have experienced declines in credit ratings from credit rating firms, which have devalued these specific securities. These declines have
occurred primarily over the past year due to changes in the market which has limited the demand for these securities and reduced their liquidity. 
We monitor the actual default rates and interest deferrals for possible losses and contractual shortfalls of interest or principal, which could
warrant further recognition of impairment, depending on our intention to hold the securities until full value can be recovered.  See additional
information on OTTI in Notes 6 and 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

All of the remaining securities that are temporarily impaired are impaired due to declines in fair values resulting from changes in interest rates or
increased credit/liquidity spreads compared to the time they were purchased.  We have the ability to hold these securities to maturity and we
expect these securities will be repaid in full, with no losses realized. As such, management does not consider the impairments to be
other-than-temporary.

Our securities available for sale portfolio composition is as follows:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Mortgage-backed securities $ 22,498 $ 22,248
Trust preferred securities 13,219 12,866
U.S. Treasury securities 1,002 1,003
Corporate obligations 2,623 2,548
Equity securities - Banks 180 251
Foreign government bonds 750 750

$ 40,272 $ 39,666

Loans

Our loan portfolio is expected to produce higher yields than investment securities and other interest-earning assets; the absolute volume and mix
of loans and the volume and mix of loans as a percentage of total earning assets is an important determinant of our net interest margin.

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Commercial loans and lines of credit $ 87,092 $ 91,111
Commercial construction 103,168 109,484
Commercial mortgages 321,444 319,143
Consumer residential construction 65,728 69,589
Residential mortgages 147,211 138,323
Consumer 255,827 251,046
Total loans $ 980,470 $ 978,696
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Total loans increased $1.774 million during the first three months of 2009.  We experienced higher balances in commercial mortgage loans
(+$2.301 million), residential mortgage loans (+$8.888 million), and consumer loans (+$4.781 million).  Commercial and consumer residential
construction balances decreased (-$6.316 million and -$3.861 million, respectively), as well as did commercial loans and lines of credit (-$4.019
million).  Although we have been aggressive in our loan origination activity, as evidenced by the growth in our total loan portfolio, the poor
market environment has continued to impact the demand for construction and development lending products. Additionally, we incurred
significant charge-offs in the commercial and construction loan portfolios during the first three months of 2009.

Commercial Construction Portfolio

Our commercial construction portfolio consists of construction and development loans for commercial purposes and includes loans made to
builders and developers of residential real estate projects.  Of the total included above, $57.350 million represents loans made to borrowers for
the development of residential real estate as of March 31, 2009.  This segment of the portfolio has exhibited greater weakness during 2008 and
the first part of 2009 due to overall weakness in the residential housing sector.

26

Edgar Filing: FIRST MARINER BANCORP - Form 10-Q

74



Table of Contents

The breakdown of the portion of the commercial construction portfolio made to borrowers for residential real estate is as follows as of March 31,
2009 and December 31, 2008:

March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Raw residential land $ 6,628 $ 6,630
Residential subdivisions 22,656 23,407
Single residential lots 4,953 4,338
Single family construction 9,142 12,547
Townhome construction 1,639 2,817
Multi-family unit construction 12,332 12,317

$ 57,350 $ 62,056

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the inability of a borrower to meet its obligations.  We manage credit risk by evaluating the risk profile
of the borrower, repayment sources, the nature of the underlying collateral, and other support given current events, conditions, and expectations. 
We attempt to manage the risk characteristics of our loan portfolio through various control processes, such as credit evaluation of borrowers,
establishment of lending limits, and application of lending procedures, including the holding of adequate collateral and the maintenance of
compensating balances. However, we seek to rely primarily on the cash flow of our borrowers as the principal source of repayment. Although
credit policies and evaluation processes are designed to minimize our risk, management recognizes that loan losses will occur and the amount of
these losses will fluctuate depending on the risk characteristics of our loan portfolio, as well as general and regional economic conditions.

We provide for loan losses through the establishment of an allowance for loan losses by provisions charged against earnings. Our allowance
represents an estimated reserve for existing losses in the loan portfolio. We deploy a systematic methodology for determining our allowance that
includes a quarterly review process, risk rating, and adjustment to our allowance.  We classify our portfolios as either consumer or commercial
and monitor credit risk separately as discussed below.  We evaluate the adequacy of our allowance continually based on a review of all
significant loans, with a particular emphasis on nonaccruing, past due, and other loans that we believe require special attention.

The allowance consists of three elements: (1) specific reserves and valuation allowances for individual credits; (2) general reserves for types or
portfolios of loans based on historical loan loss experience, judgmentally adjusted for current conditions and credit risk concentrations; and
(3) unallocated reserves. Combined specific reserves and general reserves by loan type are considered allocated reserves. All outstanding loans
are considered in evaluating the adequacy of the allowance.

Commercial

Our commercial portfolio includes all secured and unsecured loans to borrowers for commercial purposes, including commercial lines of credit
and commercial real estate.  Our process for evaluating commercial loans includes performing updates on all loans that we have rated for risk.
Our commercial loans are generally reviewed individually, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, to determine impairment, accrual status,
and the need for specific reserves.  Our methodology incorporates a variety of risk considerations, both qualitative and quantitative. Quantitative
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factors include our historical loss experience by loan type, collateral values, financial condition of borrowers, and other factors. Qualitative
factors include judgments concerning general economic conditions that may affect credit quality, credit concentrations, the pace of portfolio
growth, and delinquency levels; these qualitative factors are evaluated in connection with our unallocated portion of our allowance for loan
losses. We periodically engage outside firms and experts to independently assess our methodology and perform various loan review functions.

The process of establishing the allowance with respect to our commercial loan portfolio begins when a loan officer initially assigns each loan a
risk rating, using established credit criteria. Approximately 50% of our risk grades are subject to review and validation annually by an
independent consulting firm, as well as periodically by our internal credit review function.  Our methodology employs management�s judgment
as to the level of future losses on existing loans based on our internal review of the loan portfolio, including an analysis of the borrowers� current
financial position, and the consideration of current and anticipated economic conditions and their potential effects on specific borrowers and or
lines of business. In determining our ability to collect certain loans, we also consider the fair value of any underlying collateral. We also evaluate
credit risk concentrations, including trends in large dollar exposures to related borrowers, industry and geographic concentrations, and economic
and environmental factors.

A commercial loan is determined to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect
all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Such a loan is not
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considered impaired during a period of delay in payment if we expect to collect all amounts due, including past-due interest. We generally
consider a period of delay in payment to include delinquency up to 90 days. Commercial loans we consider impaired at March 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008 totaled $27.979 million and $26.695 million, respectively. The reserve for loan losses for commercial impaired loans was
approximately $980,000 at March 31, 2009 and $1.264 million at December 31, 2008.  While the level of impaired loans grew higher, specific
reserves declined as several impaired loans with specific reserves were partially charged off while new impaired loans had lower specific
required reserves.

In general, we place commercial impaired loans on nonaccrual status.  Once a loan is placed on nonaccrual, it remains in nonaccrual status until
the loan is current as to payment of both principal and interest and the borrower demonstrates the ability to pay and remain current.  All
payments made on nonaccrual loans are applied to the principal balance of the loan.

Consumer

Our consumer portfolio includes residential mortgage loans and other loans to individuals.  Consumer and residential mortgage loans, excluding
repurchased and transferred ALT A loans, are segregated into homogeneous pools with similar risk characteristics. Trends and current
conditions in consumer and residential mortgage pools are analyzed and historical loss experience is adjusted accordingly.  Quantitative and
qualitative adjustment factors for the consumer and residential mortgage portfolios are consistent with those for the commercial portfolios. 
Certain loans in the consumer portfolio identified as having the potential for further deterioration are analyzed individually to confirm the
appropriate risk grading and accrual status, and to determine the need for a specific reserve.  Consumer loans originated on the Bank that are
greater than 120 days past due are generally charged off.  For consumer loans originated by Mariner Finance, all such loans greater than 90 days
past due are considered nonaccrual and are generally charged off when they become 180 days past due.

Consumer loans we consider impaired at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 consisted of ALT A loans and totaled $18.754 million and
$20.945 million, respectively, with $7.987 million and $6.772 million classified as nonaccrual as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively.   Specific reserve for loan losses for consumer impaired loans amounted to $231,000 at March 31, 2009 and $1.444 million at
December 31, 2008.  The decrease reflects partial charge-offs of loans with specific reserves, which reduced the carrying amount of the loan to
its estimated fair value.

We place consumer impaired loans on nonaccrual status as deemed necessary by relevant circumstances.  Once a loan is placed on nonaccrual, it
remains in nonaccrual status until the loan is current as to payment of both principal and interest and the borrower demonstrates the ability to pay
and remain current.  All payments made on nonaccrual loans are applied to the principal balance of the loan.

Repurchased Mortgage Loans

In accordance with AICPA SOP 03-3, Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer, we record repurchased loans at
their estimated fair value at the time of repurchase.   At March 31, 2009, we maintained $5.315 million of loans repurchased in accordance with
covenants in our sales agreements with investors.  We did not repurchase any loans due to early payment default during the first three months of
2009.
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In establishing the loan�s estimated fair value, management makes significant assumptions concerning the ultimate collectibility of delinquent
loans and their ultimate realizable value.  While these projections are made with the most current data available to management, actual realized
losses could differ due to the changes in the borrowers� willingness or ability to resolve the delinquency status, changes in the actual volume of
future repurchases, changes in the real estate market, or changes in market values of those loans which are liquidated.  Management updates
these assumptions continually as greater experience becomes available.

The following table shows the total portfolio of repurchased loans and their status:

As of March 31, 2009:

Principal Additional
Balance Initial Carrying Allocated

(dollars in thousands) at Repurchase Write-Down Value Reserves (1)
Nonaccrual 1st mortgages $ 3,045 $ 8 $ 3,037 $ �
Modifications (3) 2,446 168 2,278 231

$ 5,491 $ 176 $ 5,315 $ 231
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As of December 31, 2008:

Principal Additional
Balance Initial Carrying Allocated

(dollars in thousands) at Repurchase Write-Down Value Reserves (1)
Nonaccrual 1st mortgages $ 2,974 $ 8 $ 2,966 $ 335
Nonaccrual 2nd mortgages 73 24 49 49
Delinquent 1st mortgages (2) 325 � 325 �
Modifications (3) 3,163 168 2,995 205

$ 6,535 $ 200 $ 6,335 $ 589

(1) Additional allocated reserves are included in the allowance for loan losses

(2) Includes ALT A loans that are 30 days or more past due that are not on nonaccrual status, except for past-due modifications

(3) Includes ALT A modifications that are 30 days or more past due that are not on nonaccrual status

All ALT A loans which were 90 days delinquent as of March 31, 2009 were evaluated individually for impairment, with any estimated loss
compared to the carrying amount recorded as a specific reserve.  All other ALT A loans were evaluated collectively for impairment.

The nonaccrual and delinquent loans are currently in the process of collection and the resolution of many of these loans may be through
foreclosure of the property.  The modifications in the table represent repurchased loans we have renegotiated at lower rates in order to improve
the borrower�s ability to pay.

Transferred Loans

In accordance with SFAS No. 65, Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities, any loans which are originally originated for sale into
the secondary market and which we subsequently elect to transfer into the Company�s loan portfolio are valued at fair value at the time of the
transfer with any decline in value recorded as a charge to operating expense.

We maintain $11.100 million in first-lien mortgage loans and $2.339 million in second-lien mortgage loans that were transferred from loans held
for sale to our mortgage and consumer loan portfolios, respectively.  These loans are primarily ALT A loans originated for sale and subsequently
transferred as the secondary market for these products became increasingly illiquid.  All of the loans transferred were current with respect to
principal and interest payments at the time of transfer.  As of March 31, 2009, $4.950 million of these loans are on nonaccrual.

Unallocated
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The unallocated portion of the allowance is intended to provide for losses that are not identified when establishing the specific and general
portions of the allowance and is based upon management�s evaluation of various conditions that are not directly measured in the determination of
the formula and specific allowances. Such conditions include general economic and business conditions affecting key lending areas, credit
quality trends (including trends in delinquencies and nonperforming loans expected to result from existing conditions), loan volumes and
concentrations, specific industry conditions within portfolio categories, recent loss experience in particular loan categories, duration of the
current business cycle, bank regulatory examination results, findings of external loan review examiners, and management�s judgment with
respect to various other conditions including loan administration and management and the quality of risk identification systems.  Executive
management reviews these conditions quarterly.  We have risk management practices designed to ensure timely identification of changes in loan
risk profiles; however, undetected losses may exist inherently within the loan portfolio. The judgmental aspects involved in applying the risk
grading criteria, analyzing the quality of individual loans, and assessing collateral values can also contribute to undetected, but probable, losses.

 Our total allowance at March 31, 2009 is considered by management to be sufficient to address the credit losses inherent in the current loan
portfolio.  However, our determination of the appropriate allowance level is based upon a number of assumptions we make about future events,
which we believe are reasonable, but which may or may not prove valid. Thus, there can be no assurance that our charge-offs in future periods
will not exceed our allowance for loan losses or that we will not need to make additional increases in our allowance for loan losses.
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The changes in the allowance are presented in the following table:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Allowance for loan losses, beginning of period $ 16,777 $ 12,789
Loans charged off:
Commercial (233) �
Commercial construction (1,540) �
Commercial mortgages (52) �
Consumer residential construction (547) (135)
Residential mortgages (1,444) (1,409)
Consumer (1) (2,040) (1,636)
Total loans charged off (5,856) (3,180)
Recoveries:
Commercial � 13
Commercial construction � �
Commercial mortgages � �
Consumer residential construction � �
Residential mortgages � 212
Consumer 198 151
Total recoveries 198 376
Net charge-offs (5,658) (2,804)
Provision for loan losses 4,396 3,823
Allowance for loan losses, end of period $ 15,515 $ 13,808
Loans (net of premiums and discounts):
Period-end balance $ 980,470 $ 853,214
Average balance during period 980,800 849,040
Allowance as a percentage of period-end loan balance 1.58% 1.62%
Percent of average loans:
Provision for loan losses (annualized) 1.82% 1.81%
Net charge-offs (annualized) 2.34% 1.33%

(1) Includes $400,000 and $835,000 of ALT A second mortgage loans originated by the Bank for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and
March 31, 2008, respectively.

The following table summarizes our allocation of allowance by loan type:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans

Percent to Total Percent to Total
(dollars in thousands) Amount of Total Loans Amount of Total Loans
Commercial $ 858 5.5% 8.9% $ 824 4.9% 9.3%
Commercial
construction 2,277 14.7% 10.5% 2,702 16.1% 11.2%
Commercial
mortgages 3,146 20.3% 32.8% 2,985 17.8% 32.6%
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Consumer residential
construction 482 3.1% 6.7% 583 3.5% 7.1%
Residential
mortgages 896 5.8% 15.0% 1,576 9.4% 14.1%
Consumer 4,754 30.6% 26.1% 4,683 27.9% 25.7%
Unallocated 3,102 20.0% �� 3,424 20.4% ��
Total $ 15,515 100.0% 100.0% $ 16,777 100.0% 100.0%

Based upon management�s evaluation, provisions are made to maintain the allowance as a best estimate of inherent losses within the portfolio.
The allowance for loan losses totaled $15.515 million and $16.777 million as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.  The
change in the allowance reflects management�s ongoing application of its methodologies to establish the allowance, which included increases in
the allowance for collateral dependent impaired loans (specific reserves), increases in the allowance for residential construction and development
loans which received internal risk rating downgrades during the first three months of 2009 (general reserves), as well as increases to reflect
negative market trends and other qualitative factors (unallocated reserves).  Our allowance for loan losses may not move in direct proportion to
changes in our overall trends in delinquent, nonperforming, or impaired loans.  The specific loans that make up those categories change from
period to period. Impairment on
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those loans, which would be reflected in the allowance for loan losses, might or might not exist, depending on the specific circumstances of each
loan.

Specific and general reserves for the construction portfolios (commercial and consumer residential) decreased $526,000 and reflect partial
charge offs of certain loans with specific reserves as of December 31, 2008. During the first quarter of 2009, we charged-off $2.087 million in
construction loans.

Specific and general reserves for the residential mortgage portfolio also decreased (-$680,000) due to partial and complete charge offs of certain
loans with specific reserves as of December 31, 2008. During the first quarter of 2009, we charged-off $1.444 million in residential mortgage
loans.

The provision for loan losses recognized to maintain the allowance was $4.396 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009, compared to
$3.823 million for the same period in 2008.  We recorded net charge-offs of $5.658 million during the first three months of 2009 compared to
net charge-offs of $2.804 million for the same period in 2008, primarily due to increases in net charge-offs of ALT A loans, construction loans,
commercial loans, and commercial mortgages.  During the first three months of 2009, annualized net charge-offs as compared to average loans
outstanding increased to 2.34%, compared to 1.33% during the same period of 2008.  Net charge-offs for the Bank totaled $4.617 million, while
Mariner Finance charge-offs were $1.041 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009.

Our allowance as a percentage of outstanding loans has decreased from 1.71% as of December 31, 2008 to 1.58% as of March 31, 2009,
reflecting the changes in our loss estimates and the changes resulting from the application of our loss estimate methodology.  The decrease in the
overall allowance occurred as a significant number of loans, which had specific reserves as of December 31, 2008, were determined to be losses
in the quarter ended March 31, 2009 and were charged off against the allowance during the period.  Management believes the allowance for loan
losses is adequate as of March 31, 2009.

Nonperforming Assets and Loans 90 Days Past Due and Still Accruing

Nonperforming assets, expressed as a percentage of total assets, totaled 4.72% at March 31, 2009, 4.42% at December 31, 2008, and 3.13% at
March 31, 2008.  The distribution of our nonperforming assets and loans greater than 90 days past due and accruing is illustrated in the
following table:
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March 31, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Nonaccruing loans:
Commercial $ 618 $ 603
Commercial construction 16,297 14,544
Commercial mortgages 5,055 4,134
Consumer residential construction 6,534 8,222
Alt A first and second mortgages 7,987 6,772
Other residential mortgages 1,362 1,343
Other consumer 4,881 3,145

42,734 38,763
Real estate acquired through foreclosure:
Commercial � �
Commercial construction 4,438 4,909
Commercial mortgages 2,345 2,080
Consumer residential construction 5,422 2,826
Alt A first and second mortgages 8,149 9,079
Other residential mortgages 249 �
Other consumer 1,800 100

22,403 18,994
Total nonperforming assets $ 65,137 $ 57,757

Loans past-due 90 days or more and accruing:
Commercial $ 579 $ �
Commercial construction 3,208 210
Commercial mortgages 4,008 1,634
Consumer residential construction 697 1,587
Alt A first and second mortgages � 1,519
Other residential mortgages 1,917 1,739
Other consumer 333 2,990

$ 10,742 $ 9,679

Nonaccrual loans increased $3.971 million in total from December 31, 2008 to March 31, 2009.  Commercial construction and development
loans increased $1.753 million, reflecting continued negative market conditions.  Also contributing to the increase were consumer loans, which
increased $1.736 million from December 31, 2008 to March 31, 2009.

The increase in commercial construction loans consisted of the addition of four commercial construction loans in the amount of $4.489 million,
partially offset by charge-offs and foreclosures of loans previously on nonaccrual.

The allowance for impaired loans represents the fair value deficiencies for those loans for which the estimated fair value of the collateral was
less than our carrying amount of the loan as of March 31, 2009.  Not all of the loans placed on nonaccrual since December 31, 2008 required
impairment reserves, as some of the loans� collateral had estimated fair values greater than the carrying amount of the loan.

Real estate acquired through foreclosure increased $3.409 million when compared to December 31, 2008.  The largest category of foreclosed
assets continues to be individual residential properties.  These properties have a concentration (approximately 50%) in the northern Virginia
region and are currently being carried at approximately 60% of their original appraised amount. Residential construction properties increased
due to the addition of 12 properties for $3.704 million, partially offset by write-downs and disposals of properties.  Real estate acquired through
foreclosure is carried at estimated fair value, less estimated costs to sell, and is not included as part of the allowance for loan loss totals.
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Loans 90 days delinquent and accruing increased from $9.679 million at December 31, 2008 to $10.742 million as of March 31, 2009.  Included
in the increase are increases in commercial mortgage loans of $2.374 million and commercial construction loans of $2.998 million.  The
commercial mortgage total is made up of eight loans, with the largest balance amounting to $1.224 million.  The commercial construction total
is made up of three loans, with the largest loan totaling $1.444 million.
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Troubled debt restructures (�TDRs�), which are loans that have been restructured due to the borrower�s inability to maintain a current status on the
loan, that are not included in the nonaccrual balance above amounted to approximately $9.744 million as of March 31, 2009 and $9.074 million
as of December 31, 2008.  Our troubled debt restructures are generally reviewed individually, in accordance with SFAS No. 114, Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, to determine impairment, accrual status, and the need for specific reserves.  For collateral dependent loans,
we utilize the fair value of the collateral in determining impairment.  For noncollateral dependent loans, we calculate the present value of
expected future cash flows to determine fair value and impairment.  We initially measure impairment of TDRs on a loan-by-loan basis.  The
majority of our TDRs as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were collateral dependent and, therefore, any impairment was determined
using the fair value of the collateral.

Deposits

Deposits totaled $1.022 billion at March 31, 2009, increasing $71.574 million or 7.5% over the December 31, 2008 balance of $950.233
million.  The increase in deposits was primarily due to increases in time deposits, regular savings accounts, and noninterest-bearing demand
deposits, partially offset by decreases in NOW and money market deposits. The increase in time deposits out of money market accounts has
occurred as customer preference has shifted to higher-yielding certificates of deposit.  The deposit breakdown is as follows:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Percent Percent

(dollars in thousands) Balance of Total Balance of Total
NOW & money market savings deposits $ 163,339 16.0% $ 172,690 18.2%
Regular savings deposits 55,660 5.5% 51,550 5.4%
Time deposits 681,961 66.7% 611,242 64.3%
Total interest-bearing deposits 900,960 88.2% 835,482 87.9%
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 120,847 11.8% 114,751 12.1%
Total deposits $ 1,021,807 100.0% $ 950,233 100.0%

Core deposits represent deposits that we believe to be less sensitive to changes in interest rates and, therefore, will be retained regardless of the
movement of interest rates.  We consider our core deposits to be all noninterest-bearing, NOW, money market accounts less than $100,000, and
saving deposits, as well as all time deposits less than $100,000 that mature in greater than one year.  As of March 31, 2009, our core deposits
were $454.971 million.  The remainder of our deposits could be susceptible to attrition due to interest rate movements.

Borrowings

Our borrowings consist of short-term promissory notes issued to certain qualified investors, short-term and long-term advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank (�FHLB�), a mortgage loan, and a line of credit to finance consumer receivables.  Our short-term promissory notes are in the
form of commercial paper, which reprice daily and have maturities of 270 days or less.  Our advances from the FHLB may be in the form of
short-term or long-term obligations. Short-term advances have maturities for one year or less and can be paid without penalty. Long-term
borrowings through the FHLB have original maturities up to 15 years and generally contain prepayment penalties.

Long-term borrowings, which totaled $174.998 million and $177.868 million at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, consist of
long-term advances from the FHLB, a line of credit used to fund consumer finance receivables, and a mortgage loan on our
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former headquarters building.  The amortized cost of long-term FHLB advances totaled $85.000 million at March 31,
2009 and December 31, 2008; however, $60.000 million of the advances are recorded at fair value ($63.496 million)
in accordance with SFAS No. 159, making the total carrying amount of long-term FHLB advances $88.496 million as
of March 31, 2009.  As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the balance on the mortgage loan was $9.206
million and $9.249 million, respectively, and the balance on the consumer receivable line of credit was $77.296
million and $79.546 million, respectively.

Short-term borrowings consist of short-term promissory notes and short-term advances from the FHLB.  These borrowings increased
from $43.128 million at December 31, 2008 to $50.009 million at March 31, 2009.

In the past, to further our funding and capital needs, we raised capital by issuing Trust Preferred Securities through statutory trusts (the �Trusts�),
which are wholly-owned by First Mariner Bancorp.  The Trusts used the proceeds from the sales of the Trust Preferred Securities, combined
with First Mariner Bancorp�s equity investment in these Trusts, to purchase subordinated deferrable interest debentures from First Mariner
Bancorp.  The debentures are the sole assets of the Trusts.  Aggregate debentures as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were $73.724
million.
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The Trust Preferred Securities are mandatorily redeemable, in whole or in part, upon repayment of their underlying subordinated debentures at
their respective maturities or their earlier redemption. The subordinated debentures are redeemable prior to maturity at First Mariner�s option on
or after its optional redemption dates.  On December 22, 2008, First Mariner announced that it was electing to suspend interest payments on the
debentures, beginning with the January 7, 2009 payment.  This deferment is permitted under the terms of the debentures and does not constitute
an event of default.  The debentures continue to accrue interest, which will have to be fully repaid prior to the expiration of the deferral period. 
The total deferral period may not exceed 20 consecutive quarters.

First Mariner Bancorp has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all of the obligations of the Trusts.

Under applicable regulatory guidelines, a portion of the Trust Preferred Securities will qualify as Tier I capital, and the remaining portion will
qualify as Tier II capital. Under applicable regulatory guidelines, $16.546 million of the outstanding Trust Preferred Securities qualify as Tier I
capital and $38.936 million of the remaining Trust Preferred Securities qualify as Tier II capital at March 31, 2009.  The total amount of our
Trust Preferred Securities allowable as part of capital was limited to $55.482 million as of March 31, 2009.

Capital Resources

Stockholders� equity decreased $2.094 million in the first three months of 2009 to $43.921 million from $46.015 million as of December 31,
2008.  Retained earnings declined by the net loss of $3.101 million for the first three months of 2009, partially offset by the cumulative effect of
accounting change adjustment related to securities of $1.148 million.

Common stock and additional paid-in-capital increased by $12,000 due to the effect of vesting previously granted stock options.  We did not
repurchase any common stock during 2009, nor was any stock issued through the employee stock purchase plan.  Accumulated other
comprehensive loss, which is derived from the fair value calculations for securities available for sale and interest rate swaps, increased by
$153,000.

Banking regulatory authorities have implemented strict capital guidelines directly related to the credit risk associated with an institution�s assets. 
Banks and bank holding companies are required to maintain capital levels based on their �risk adjusted� assets so that categories of assets with
higher �defined� credit risks will require more capital support than assets with lower risk.  Additionally, capital must be maintained to support
certain off-balance sheet instruments.

Capital is classified as Tier 1 capital (common stockholders� equity less certain intangible assets plus a portion of the Trust Preferred Securities)
and Total Capital (Tier 1 plus the allowed portion of the allowance for loan losses plus any off-balance sheet reserves and the portion of Trust
Preferred Securities not included in Tier 1 capital). Minimum required levels must at least equal 4% for Tier 1 capital and 8% for Total Capital.
In addition, institutions must maintain a minimum of 4% leverage capital ratio (Tier 1 capital to average total assets for the previous quarter).

The Company and the Bank have met their capital adequacy requirements to date.  We regularly monitor the Company�s capital adequacy ratios
to assure that the Bank meets its regulatory capital requirements.  The regulatory capital ratios are shown below:
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Minimum
March 31, December 31, Regulatory

2009 2008 Requirements
Regulatory capital ratios:
Leverage:
Consolidated 4.0% 4.3% 4.0%
The Bank 6.2% 6.0% 4.0%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets:
Consolidated 4.7% 5.0% 4.0%
The Bank 7.3% 7.0% 4.0%
Total capital to risk-weighted assets:
Consolidated 9.3% 9.9% 8.0%
The Bank 9.1% 9.0% 8.0%
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Results of Operations

Net Loss

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we realized a net loss of $3.101 million compared to a net loss of $3.278 million for the three
month period ended March 31, 2008.  Basic and diluted losses per share for the first three months of 2009 and 2008 totaled $(0.48) and $(0.52),
respectively.  Earnings for the three months ended March 31, 2009 continued to be impacted by the significant deterioration of the national and
local residential real estate markets, which is resulting in higher levels of loan loss provisions and write-downs in value or losses on sales of
foreclosed real estate.  The increases in our provision for loan losses and expenses related to real estate acquired through foreclosure were
partially offset by increased mortgage-banking revenue and an insurance recovery.  We also recognized a $1.716 million OTTI charge on
securities.

Return on average assets and return on average equity are key measures of an entity�s performance. Return on average assets, the product of net
income divided by total average assets, measures how effectively we utilize the Company�s assets to produce income. Our return on average
assets (annualized) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 was (0.93)% compared to (1.07)% for the corresponding period in 2008. Return
on average equity, the product of net income divided by average equity, measures how effectively we invest the Company�s capital to produce
income. Return on average equity (annualized) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 was (26.21)% compared to (19.74)% for the
corresponding period in 2008.  All profitability indicators were significantly affected by our net losses.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the amount by which interest income on interest-earning assets exceeds interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, is the
most significant component of our earnings. Net interest income is a function of several factors, including changes in the volume and mix of
interest-earning assets and funding sources, and market interest rates. While management policies influence these factors, external forces,
including customer needs and demands, competition, the economic policies of the federal government, and the monetary policies of the Federal
Reserve Board, are also determining factors.

Net interest income for the first three months of 2009 totaled $11.078 million, a decrease of $892,000 over $11.970 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2008. The decrease in net interest income during 2009 was primarily due to a decrease in the yield on interest-earning assets
from 7.99% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 6.91% for the three months ended March 31, 2009, and increases in the volume of
both interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, partially offset by a decrease in the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities. The impact
of these items decreased the net interest margin to 3.70% from 4.36%.

Interest income.  Total interest income decreased by $1.285 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 due
primarily to the decreased yield on average earning assets. Yields on earning assets for the period decreased to 6.91%
from 7.99%, while average earning assets increased $104.632 million.  We experienced decreased yields on most
major earning asset categories, primarily a result of the lower interest rate environment in 2009.  Additionally, our
interest income was negatively affected by increased interest reversals on and increased levels of nonaccrual loans. 
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The yield on loans decreased from 8.81% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 7.57% for the same period in
2009.

Average loans outstanding increased by $131.760 million.  We experienced increases in commercial loans and lines of credit (+$23.235
million), commercial mortgages (+$49.489 million), residential mortgages (+$51.908 million), and consumer loans (+$50.291), which were
partially offset by decreases in commercial and consumer construction loans (-$19.967 million and -$23.196 million, respectively).  The
decrease in both commercial and consumer residential construction loans was due primarily to the deterioration of the real estate market, which
has led to the reduction of new construction as well as foreclosures.  The increases in commercial loans and lines of credit and in commercial
mortgages were due to a continued focus on commercial lending.  The increase in residential mortgage loans was due primarily to increased
portfolio lending activity.  Consumer loans increased due to increases in both Bank and Mariner Finance consumer lending.  Average loans held
for sale increased $2.415 million, as higher volume was offset by faster execution of loans sales to investors in 2009.  Average securities
decreased by $30.168 million, due primarily to normal principal repayments on mortgage-backed securities and deteriorations in value due to the
current economic conditions.

Interest expense.  Interest expense decreased by $393,000 to $9.361 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009,
compared to $9.754 million for the same period in 2008.  We experienced a decrease in the average rate paid on
interest-bearing liabilities, from 3.82% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 3.22% for the three months
ended March 31, 2009, which was partially offset by a higher level of interest-bearing liabilities.  The decrease in the
rate paid on interest-bearing deposits from 3.24% in 2008 to 2.96% in 2009 was driven primarily by decreases in the
rates on money market accounts and certificates of deposit, partially offset by slight increases in the rates on NOW
accounts.  Average interest-bearing deposits increased by $115.524 million primarily due to an increase in the volume
of time deposits, mostly brokered deposits placed during 2008.  An increase in average borrowings of $35.027 million
was due primarily to increased borrowings on the consumer finance line of credit of Mariner Finance to fund its
consumer loan growth and increases in our short-term FHLB advances.  We experienced a decrease in the costs of
borrowed funds
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from 5.48% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 3.99% for the same period in 2009 due to the decline in variable-rate trust preferred
security costs, as well as lower short-term borrowing costs.

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, information regarding the average balances of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities and the resulting yields on average interest-earning assets and rates paid on average interest-bearing liabilities.
Average balances are also provided for noninterest-earning assets and noninterest-bearing liabilities.

For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance (1) Interest (2) Rate Balance (1) Interest (2) Rate

(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Loans:
Commercial loans and lines of credit $ 88,429 $ 1,156 5.23% $ 65,194 $ 1,141 6.92%
Commercial construction 105,008 1,394 5.31% 124,975 2,297 7.27%
Commercial mortgages 325,014 5,525 6.80% 275,525 5,389 7.74%
Consumer residential construction 67,175 802 4.85% 90,371 1,719 7.65%
Residential mortgages 140,559 2,047 5.83% 88,651 1,411 6.36%
Consumer 254,615 7,614 11.98% 204,324 6,882 13.38%
Total loans 980,800 18,538 7.57% 849,040 18,839 8.81%
Loans held for sale 84,868 1,101 5.19% 82,453 1,162 5.64%
Securities, trading and AFS 51,466 774 6.15% 81,634 1,146 5.62%
Interest-bearing deposits 60,725 26 0.17% 61,490 489 3.18%
Restricted stock investments, at cost 7,373 � � 5,983 88 5.90%

Total earning assets 1,185,232 20,439 6.91% 1,080,600 21,724 7.99%

Allowance for loan losses (17,255) (11,933)
Cash and other nonearning assets 178,411 167,516
Total assets $ 1,346,388 20,439 $ 1,236,183 21,724

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Interest-bearing deposits:
NOW deposits $ 6,453 11 0.70% $ 15,861 13 0.32%
Savings deposits 52,920 44 0.34% 53,398 43 0.32%
Money market deposits 160,088 346 0.88% 254,887 1,231 1.94%
Time deposits 659,428 6,017 3.70% 439,219 4,869 4.46%
Total interest-bearing deposits 878,889 6,418 2.96% 763,365 6,156 3.24%
Borrowings 299,173 2,943 3.99% 264,146 3,598 5.48%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,178,062 9,361 3.22% 1,027,511 9,754 3.82%

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 112,973 138,116
Other noninterest-bearing liabilities 7,372 3,772
Stockholders� equity 47,981 66,784
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 1,346,388 9,361 $ 1,236,183 9,754

Net interest income/net interest spread $ 11,078 3.69% $ 11,970 4.17%
Net interest margin 3.70% 4.36%
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(1)     Nonaccrual loans are included in average loans.

(2)  There are no tax equivalency adjustments

A rate/volume analysis, which demonstrates changes in interest income and expense for significant assets and liabilities, appears below. 
Changes attributable to mix (rate and volume) are allocated to volume and rate based on the relative size of the variance that can be separately
identified with each.
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For the Three Months Ended For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Due to Variances in Due to Variances in
Rate Volume Total Rate Volume Total

(dollars in thousands)
Interest earned on:
Loans:
Commercial loans and lines of
credit $ (1,301) $ 1,316 $ 15 $ 198 $ (292) $ (94)
Commercial construction (567) (336) (903) (84) (231) (315)
Commercial mortgages (3,036) 3,172 136 1,673 (2,073) (400)
Consumer residential construction (539) (378) (917) (235) (74) (309)
Residential mortgages (748) 1,384 636 366 412 778
Consumer (3,800) 4,532 732 (461) 1,289 828
Total loans (9,991) 9,690 (301) 1,457 (969) 488
Loans held for sale (244) 183 (61) (1,056) 834 (222)
Securities, trading and AFS 618 (990) (372) 1,104 (1,605) (501)
Interest-bearing deposits (457) (6) (463) (809) 795 (14)
Restricted stock investments, at cost (224) 136 (88) 13 (19) (6)

Total interest income (10,298) 9,013 (1,285) 709 (964) (255)

Interest paid on:
Interest-bearing deposits:
NOW deposits 39 (41) (2) 3 5 8
Savings deposits 4 (3) 1 9 (11) (2)
Money market deposits (527) (358) (885) (1,138) (222) (1,360)
Time deposits (4,692) 5,840 1,148 (141) 722 581
Total interest-bearing deposits (5,176) 5,438 262 (1,267) 494 (773)
Borrowings (3,021) 2,366 (655) (1,238) 993 (245)

Total interest expense (8,197) 7,804 (393) (2,505) 1,487 (1,018)

Net interest income $ (2,101) $ 1,209 $ (892) $ 3,214 $ (2,451) $ 763

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income for the three months ended March 31, 2009 was $8.272 million, an increase of $3.644 million or 78.7% from the comparable
period of 2008 primarily due to an increase in mortgage-banking revenue and a recovery in value on our assets and liabilities carried at fair
value.  In addition, noninterest income for the three months ended March 31, 2009 reflects OTTI charges of $1.716 million and an insurance
recovery of $850,000.

Mortgage-banking revenue increased from $1.631 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $4.910 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 due primarily to a larger volume of originations of loans and higher margins on loans sold.  The volume of loans sold
increased from $373.729 million in 2008 to $502.593 million in 2009 and reflects increased customer refinance activity.

Deposit service charges declined to $1.332 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $1.535 million for the first quarter of 2008 due to lower
overdraft income and to a decline in the number of accounts in general. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, we experienced a

Edgar Filing: FIRST MARINER BANCORP - Form 10-Q

94



recovery of value of our trading assets and certain long-term borrowings of $768,000.  The valuation of these items resulted in a net trading loss
of $1.020 million for the same period in 2008.

Other income increased $551,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009.  Included in this line item is an insurance recovery of $850,000
related to ALT A loans originated in 2006 and 2007.  Other income for the three months ended March 31, 2008 included Visa IPO income of
$156,000.

Noninterest expenses

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, noninterest expenses increased $2.014 million, or 10.9%, to $20.495 million compared to $18.481
million for the same period of 2008, primarily due to increased expenses for costs related to real estate acquired through foreclosure.
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Write-downs and costs of real estate acquired through foreclosure increased $1.478 million, as nonperforming commercial, commercial
construction, consumer construction, and ALT A loans moved through the foreclosure process.  Management regularly updates its values of
foreclosed properties and continued declines in the value of residential real estate have required further write-downs in our carrying value. 
Occupancy expenses increased by $316,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 due primarily to decreased rental income received from
tenants of our facilities and higher communications expenses.  Professional fees increased due primarily to legal fees associated with loan
workouts and legal fees associated with regulatory compliance issues.

The following table shows the breakout of noninterest expense:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Salaries and employee benefits $ 9,207 $ 9,204
Occupancy 2,947 2,631
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 979 983
Secondary marketing valuation � 180
Professional services 858 421
Advertising 258 430
Data processing 513 548
Service and maintenance 726 673
Office supplies 178 186
ATM servicing expenses 228 244
Printing 119 152
Corporate insurance 147 149
Write-downs, losses, and costs of real estate acquired
through foreclosure 2,114 636
FDIC premiums 272 186
Consulting fees 213 154
Marketing/promotion 142 138
Postage 223 218
Overnight delivery/courier 144 189
Security 68 36
Dues and subscriptions 122 137
Loan expenses 305 186
Loan origination expense 15 31
Director fees 77 72
Employee education and training 61 79
Automobile expense 58 76
Travel and entertainment 72 109
Other 449 433

$ 20,495 $ 18,481

Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax benefit of $2.440 million on a net loss before taxes of $5.541 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of (44.0)%,
for the three month period ended March 31, 2009 in comparison to an income tax benefit of $2.428 million on a net loss before taxes of $5.706
million, resulting in an effective tax rate of (42.6)%, for the three month period ended March 31, 2008.
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At March 31, 2009, we had approximately $39.000 million in state operating loss carryforwards, representing a deferred income tax asset of
$2.073 million, and approximately $17.000 million in federal operating loss carryforwards, representing a deferred income tax asset of $5.951
million.  Management has determined that a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was not required as of March 31, 2009.
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Liquidity

Liquidity describes our ability to meet financial obligations, including lending commitments and contingencies, that arise during the normal
course of business. Liquidity is primarily needed to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal requirements of our customers, as well as to
meet current and planned expenditures. These cash requirements are met on a daily basis through the inflow of deposit funds, and the
maintenance of short-term overnight investments, maturities and calls in our investment portfolio and available lines of credit with the FHLB,
which requires pledged collateral. Fluctuations in deposit and short-term borrowing balances may be influenced by the interest rates paid,
general consumer confidence and the overall economic environment. There can be no assurances that deposit withdrawals and loan fundings will
not exceed all available sources of liquidity on a short-term basis. Such a situation would have an adverse effect on our ability to originate new
loans and maintain reasonable loan and deposit interest rates, which would negatively impact earnings.

The borrowing requirements of customers include commitments to extend credit and the unused portion of lines of credit (collectively
�commitments�), which totaled $411.927 million at March 31, 2009. Historically, many of the commitments expire without being fully drawn;
therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Commitments for real estate development and
construction, which totaled $54.662 million, are generally short-term in nature, satisfying cash requirements with principal repayments as
construction properties financed are generally repaid with permanent financing. Available credit lines represent the unused portion of credit
previously extended and available to the customer as long as there is no violation of material contractual conditions. Commitments to extend
credit for residential mortgage loans of $252.518 million at March 31, 2009 generally expire within 60 days. Commercial commitments to
extend credit and unused lines of credit of $15.717 million at March 31, 2009 generally do not extend for more than 12 months. Consumer
commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit of $14.158 million at March 31, 2009 are generally open ended. At March 31, 2009,
available home equity lines totaled $74.872 million. Home equity credit lines generally extend for a period of 10 years.

Capital expenditures for various branch locations and equipment can be a significant use of liquidity.  As of March 31, 2009, we plan on
expending approximately $1.000 million in the next 12 months on our premises and equipment.

Customer withdrawals are also a principal use of liquidity, but are generally mitigated by growth in customer funding sources, such as deposits
and short-term borrowings. While balances may fluctuate up and down in any given period, historically we have experienced a steady increase
in total customer funding sources.

The Bank�s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents (which are cash on hand or amounts due from financial institutions,
federal funds sold, money market mutual funds, and interest bearing deposits), trading and available for sale securities, deposit accounts, and
borrowings.  The levels of such sources are dependent on the Bank�s operating, financing and investing activities at any given time.  Cash and
cash equivalents totaled $107.973 million at March 31, 2009 compared to $67.339 million as of December 31, 2008.  Our loan to deposit ratio
stood at 96.0% as of March 31, 2009 and 103.0% as of December 31, 2008.

We also have the ability to utilize established credit lines as additional sources of liquidity. To utilize the vast majority of our credit lines, we
must pledge certain loans and/or securities before advances can be obtained.  As of March 31, 2009, we maintained lines of credit totaling
$340.248 million and funding capacity of $119.753 million based upon loans and securities available for pledging and available overnight
deposits.
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Inflation

Inflation may be expected to have an impact on our operating costs and, thus, on net income. A prolonged period of inflation could cause interest
rates, wages, and other costs to increase and could adversely affect our results of operations unless the fees we charge could be increased
correspondingly. However, we believe that the impact of inflation on our operations was not material for 2009 or 2008.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We enter into off-balance sheet arrangements in the normal course of business. These arrangements consist primarily of commitments to extend
credit, lines of credit, and letters of credit. In addition, the Company has certain operating lease obligations.

Credit Commitments

Credit commitments are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition to the contract. Loan commitments
generally have interest rates fixed at current market amounts, fixed expiration dates, and may require payment of a fee. Lines of credit generally
have variable interest rates. Such lines do not represent future cash requirements because it is unlikely that all customers will draw upon their
lines in full at any time. Letters of credit are commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.
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Our exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the borrower is the contract amount of the commitment. Loan commitments, lines
of credit, and letters of credit are made on the same terms, including collateral, as outstanding loans. We are not aware of any accounting loss we
would incur by funding our commitments.

See detailed information on credit commitments above under �Liquidity.�

Derivatives

We maintain and account for hedging derivatives, in the form of swaps and interest rate lock commitments, in accordance with SFAS No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. We recognize gains and losses on swap contracts in the Consolidated Statements
of Financial Condition in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax effects.  We recognize any gains and losses on interest rate lock
commitments or forward sales commitments on loan pipeline through mortgage-banking revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Mariner Finance has entered into swap contracts to hedge the economic impact of its consumer finance receivables line of credit. The swap is
intended to decrease the volatility of the variable nature of the interest rate associated with the line of credit and ultimately decrease interest
sensitivity.

The Bank, through First Mariner Mortgage, enters into interest rate lock commitments, under which we originate residential mortgage
loans with interest rates determined prior to funding. Rate lock commitments on mortgage loans that we intend to sell in the secondary
market are considered derivatives. The period of time between issuance of a loan commitment and closing and sale of the loan generally
ranges from 14 days to 60 days. For these rate lock commitments, we protect the Company from changes in interest rates through the
use of forward sales commitments, primarily in bulk (�mandatory delivery�).

Under mandatory delivery commitments, we are exposed to price risk from the time a rate lock commitment is made to a mortgage applicant
until the time the mortgage loan is sold. To manage this risk we use forward sales of agency mortgage-backed securities. Additionally, under
mandatory delivery commitments, we remain exposed to basis risk in that the changes in value of our hedges may not equal or completely offset
the changes in value of the rate commitments being hedged. This can result due to changes in the market demand for our mortgage loans brought
about by supply and demand considerations and perceptions about credit risk relative to the agency securities. We also mitigate counterparty risk
by entering into mandatory delivery commitments with proven counterparties and forward sales of mortgage-backed securities with
pre-approved financial intermediaries.

The market value of rate lock commitments is not readily ascertainable with precision because rate lock commitments are not actively
traded in stand-alone markets.  The Bank determines the fair value of rate lock commitments by measuring the change in the value of
the underlying asset, while taking into consideration the probability that the rate lock commitments will close.
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Information pertaining to the carrying amounts of our derivative financial instruments follows as of March 31, 2009:

March 31, 2009
Carrying Estimated

(dollars in thousands) Amount Fair Value
Interest rate swaps $ 60,000 $ 61,374
Interest rate lock commitments 252,518 255,605
Forward contracts to sell mortgage-backed securities 160,250 158,778

Changes in interest rates could materially affect the fair value of the swaps, the interest rate lock commitments, or the forward commitments. In
the case of the loan related derivatives, fair value is also impacted by the probability that the rate lock commitment will close (�fallout factor�). In
addition, changes in interest rates could result in changes in the fallout factor, which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities. This is
because the impact of an interest rate shift on the fallout ratio is non-symmetrical and non-linear.

Item 3 - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Results of operations for financial institutions, including us, may be materially and adversely affected by changes in prevailing economic
conditions, including declines in real estate values, rapid changes in interest rates, and the monetary and fiscal policies of the federal
government.  Our loan portfolio is concentrated primarily in central Maryland and portions of Maryland�s Eastern Shore and is, therefore, subject
to risks associated with these local economies.

As of March 31, 2009, we have a significant amount of loans that we either repurchased from investors or transferred from
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our held for sale portfolio with collateral located in Northern Virginia, where the housing market has declined dramatically.  See our discussion
of repurchased loans in Item 2 -  �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� under the heading
�Credit Risk Management.�

Interest Rate Risk

Our profitability is in part a function of the spread between the interest rates earned on assets and the interest rates paid on deposits and other
interest-bearing liabilities (net interest income), including advances from the FHLB and other borrowings.  Interest rate risk arises from
mismatches (i.e., the interest sensitivity gap) between the dollar amount of repricing or maturing assets and liabilities and is measured in terms
of the ratio of the interest rate sensitivity gap to total assets.  More assets repricing or maturing than liabilities over a given time period is
considered asset-sensitive and is reflected as a positive gap, and more liabilities repricing or maturing than assets over a given time period is
considered liability-sensitive and is reflected as negative gap.  An asset-sensitive position (i.e., a positive gap) will generally enhance earnings in
a rising interest rate environment and will negatively impact earnings in a falling interest rate environment, while a liability-sensitive position
(i.e., a negative gap) will generally enhance earnings in a falling interest rate environment and negatively impact earnings in a rising interest rate
environment.  Fluctuations in interest rates are not predictable or controllable.  We have attempted to structure our asset and liability
management strategies to mitigate the impact on net interest income of changes in market interest rates.  However, there can be no assurance that
we will be able to manage interest rate risk so as to avoid significant adverse effects on net interest income.  At March 31, 2009, we had a
one-year cumulative positive gap of approximately $120.290 million.

In addition to the use of interest rate sensitivity reports, we test our interest rate sensitivity through the deployment of a simulation analysis. 
Earnings simulation models are used to estimate what effect specific interest rate changes would have on our projected net interest income. 
Derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate caps, are included in the analysis. Changes in prepayments have been included where
changes in behavior patterns are assumed to be significant to the simulation, particularly mortgage related assets. Call features on certain
securities and borrowings are based on their call probability in view of the projected rate change.  At March 31, 2009, the simulation model
provided the following profile of our interest rate risk measured over a one-year time horizon, assuming a parallel shift in a yield curve based off
the U.S. dollar forward swap curve adjusted for certain pricing assumptions:

Immediate Rate Change
+200BP -200BP

Net interest income (0.79)% (4.35)%

Both of the above tools used to assess interest rate risk have strengths and weaknesses.  Because the gap analysis reflects a static position at a
single point in time, it is limited in quantifying the total impact of market rate changes which do not affect all earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities equally or simultaneously.  In addition, gap reports depict the existing structure, excluding exposure arising from new business.  While
the simulation process is a powerful tool in analyzing interest rate sensitivity, many of the assumptions used in the process are highly qualitative
and subjective and are subject to the risk that past historical activity may not generate accurate predictions of the future.  The model also
assumes parallel movements in interest rates, which means both short-term and long-term rates will change equally.  Nonparallel changes in
interest rates (short-term rates changing differently from long-term rates) could result in significant differences in projected income amounts
when compared to parallel tests.  Both measurement tools taken together, however, provide an effective evaluation of our exposure to changes in
interest rates, enabling management to better control the volatility of earnings.

We are party to mortgage rate lock commitments to fund mortgage loans at interest rates previously agreed (locked) by both us and the borrower
for specified periods of time. When the borrower locks an interest rate, we effectively extend a put option to the borrower, whereby the borrower
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is not obligated to enter into the loan agreement, but we must honor the interest rate for the specified time period. We are exposed to interest rate
risk during the accumulation of interest rate lock commitments and loans prior to sale. We utilize forward sales commitments to economically
hedge the changes in fair value of the loan due to changes in market interest rates.

Item 4  - Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.  The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as this Quarterly Report, is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms,
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company�s management, including the Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�) and
Chief Financial Officer (�CFO�), as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.  Further, the
design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to
their costs.  These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake.  Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or
more people, or by
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management override of the control.  The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over
time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

An evaluation of the effectiveness of these disclosure controls, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, was
carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Company�s management, including the CEO and CFO.  Based on that
evaluation, the Company�s management, including the CEO and CFO, has concluded that the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures are
in fact effective at the reasonable assurance level.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There were no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting
during our last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1 - Legal Proceedings

On April 22, 2009, the Bank entered into a consent agreement with the FDIC pursuant to which it agreed to the issuance of consent orders
relating to the FDIC�s investigation into whether the Bank violated federal fair lending laws.  Without admitting any wrongdoing, the Bank
agreed to the orders to settle the investigation.  Among other things, the consent orders require the Bank to deposit $950,000 into a restitution
fund to be used for paying restitution to affected borrowers and to pay a $50,000 civil money penalty.  Details of these consent orders are
discussed in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this report, which Note is incorporated herein by
reference.

We are party to other legal actions that are routine and incidental to our business.  In management�s opinion, the outcome of these matters,
individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position.

Item 1A � Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties to which our financial condition and operations are subject are discussed in detail in Item 1A of Part I of the Annual
Report of First Mariner Bancorp on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Item 2 - Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
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None

Item 3 - Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

Item 4 - Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

At the Company�s Annual Meeting of Stockholders held May 5, 2009, the following directors were elected to serve a three-year term expiring
upon the date of the Company�s 2012 Annual Meeting or until their respective successors are elected and qualified:

Votes For Votes Against
Joseph A. Cicero 5,298,105 747,497
John J. Oliver, Jr. 4,992,495 1,053,107
John P. McDaniel 5,426,595 619,007
Robert Caret 5,400,585 645,017

Also, at the Company�s Annual Meeting of Stockholders held May 5, 2009, a shareholder proposal regarding the separation of the positions of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer was voted upon and was defeated as follows:

Votes For Votes Against Abstain Broker Nonvotes
1,258,758 2,472,840 53,138 2,260,866
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Item 5 - Other Information

None

Item 6 - Exhibits

31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, filed herewith

31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIRST MARINER BANCORP

Date: 05/15/09 By: /s/ Edwin F. Hale Sr.
Edwin F. Hale Sr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: 05/15/09 By: /s/ Mark A. Keidel
Mark A. Keidel
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit Index

31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, filed herewith

31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, furnished herewith
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